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To the Minister of Internal Affairs

In accordance with section 295 of the Gambling Act 2003, I present the report of Te Puna 
Tahua Lottery Grants Board (Board) and of each distribution committee for the 12 months 
ended 30 June 2024, together with a copy of the accounts of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries 
for the same period. 

The role of the Board is to determine the proportions in which the profits of Lotto NZ are 
allocated for distribution. 

Annual accounts 
The Board is required to produce an annual report under section 295 of the Gambling Act 
2003, and is a Crown entity for the purposes of sections 150(3), 154-156 and 158 of the Crown 
Entities Act 2004. 

As such, it is required to prepare its financial statements and an audit report in accordance 
with those provisions. The annual report must be tabled in the House of Representatives. 

The New Zealand Lotteries Commission conducted lotteries throughout this financial year 
under section 238 of the Gambling Act 2003. The profits of New Zealand Lotteries are paid 
into a bank account established and operated under section 286 of the Gambling Act 2003. 
Grants and miscellaneous expenditure are paid out of this account. 

The Board has prepared its financial statements in accordance with section 154 of the Crown 
Entities Act 2004. The audit report for the year ended 30 June 2024 provided under section 
156 of the Crown Entities Act 2004 is included along with the financial statements in this 
report. 

Paul James 
Secretary for Internal Affairs 
Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board 

Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board 
c/o Department of Internal Affairs
45 Pipitea Street
PO Box 805
WELLINGTON 6140
0800 824 824
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Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board

Vision/Te Whāinga 
Building strong, sustainable communities together. 
E waihanga tahi ana i ngā hapori pakari.

Mission/Te Whakatakanga 
Contribute funding to support the vision in a considered, responsive and timely way. 
Ko te tuku pūtea hei tautoko i te whāinga mā te ara taute, māhorahora, arotau hoki.

Relationships/Tātai hono 
Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori, and their 
protocols. 
E mārama ana a ki ngā wawata me ngā hiahia o te iwi Māori, me ō rātou tikanga. 

Board members

Hon Brooke van Velden 
(Minister of Internal Affairs, 
Presiding Member)

Sumati Govind 
(Appointed by the  
Governor-General)

Karen Coutts 
(Appointed by the  
Governor-General)

Hon Louise Upston 
(Prime Minister’s 
Representative)

Lemauga Lydia Sosene 
(Leader of the Opposition’s 
Representative) 

Colleen Tuuta
(Appointed by the  
Governor-General)
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Outputs
In 2023/24, Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board allocated $324,421,631 of lottery profits.

Lottery Community committees received the following allocations:

Regional Community committees $87,959,371

National Community committees $11,425,634

Lottery specialist committees received the following allocations: 

Community Facilities $14,524,199

Community Sector Research In recess

Environment and Heritage $7,506,741

Health Research $2,238,781

Individuals with Disabilities $10,295,975

Minister’s Discretionary Fund $6,000,000

Oranga Marae $35,000,000

Outdoor Safety $8,293,616

Significant Projects Fund In recess

Statutory Bodies

Creative New Zealand $49,500,000

New Zealand Film Commission $21,500,000

Sport New Zealand* $66,000,000

* Sport New Zealand was also allocated $2,477,314 for the water safety sector.

Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision $1,700,000
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Presiding member’s report 2023/24 

 

In November 2023 I had the privilege of picking up the role of 
presiding member for Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board (Board), 
as part of my Minister of Internal Affairs portfolio. I have enjoyed 
getting to know the work of the Board and look forward to continuing to see the difference 
the Board’s funding is making across New Zealand.

The Board’s programme to evolve the lottery grants system was well underway when I 
joined the Board. It is seeking to evolve the funding system to be strategy led, data driven, 
and one that continually learns and evolves to the changing needs of New Zealand. This is a 
significant uplift in the Board’s strategic approach to funding.

$324.4 million of lottery profits were allocated in FY2023/24
2023/24 saw another year with a large amount of lottery grants available to be distributed. 
The Board allocated these profits across its distribution committees, statutory bodies and the 
Minister’s Discretionary Fund to support a diverse range of activities and projects across the 
country. 

I particularly note the decision of the Board in September 2023 to allocate $5.7 million in 
additional Lotto NZ profits to the regional distribution committees from the regions with 
the most significant damage due to Cyclone Gabrielle and I extend my best wishes to those 
communities that are still recovering.

Changes to membership of the Board
This year we welcomed three other new Board members: Minister for the Community 
and Voluntary Sector – Hon Louise Upston as the Prime Minister’s representative on the 
Board; Labour MP for Mangere – Lemauga Lydia Sosene as the leader of the opposition’s 
representative on the Board; and Karen Coutts as a Board community liaison member, 
appointed by the Governor-General.

The Board would like to recognise the valuable contributions of Hon Barbara Edmonds as 
the previous presiding member of the Board, and outgoing Board members Hon Priyanca 
Radhakrishnan, Mr Simon O’Connor, and Antonina Grant.

Introducing the Board’s draft Statement of Intent
Over the 2023/24 year, the Board participated in workshops, and focused its meetings on 
developing the Board’s draft Statement of Intent (SOI), in preparation for engagement in the 
first half of 2024/25. The Board will consider feedback from stakeholders as it finalises its SOI 
in the second half of the financial year.
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The grant funding system has remained largely unchanged for 35 years despite New Zealand 
society experiencing considerable change over this time. The SOI provides the Board 
opportunity to set out how it will evolve the lottery grants system and its funding priorities to 
reflect this change.

Thank you to everyone who makes this happen
I would like to acknowledge those Board members that completed their service to the Board 
during 2023/24. I also thank the presiding members and members of lottery distribution 
committees for all their work this year. Committees have had another busy year and I pass on 
my appreciation for their time and dedication that they show in their work. 

The Board would also like to acknowledge the work of Department of Internal Affairs 
staff as the Board’s and committees’ secretariat. They play an important role providing 
administrative and advisory support within communities across New Zealand, along with 
support to the Board and committees.

The year ahead
Lotto NZ’s 2024/25 profit forecast enabled the Board to allocate $343.5 million to the 
communities of New Zealand. This is a $19.1 million increase from 2023/24. 

Lottery Community Sector Research and Lottery Significant Projects will continue to remain 
in recess for the coming year. 

I look forward to continuing to work with my fellow Board members over the coming year 
as we ensure lottery funding makes a positive contribution toward current and future 
generations.

Brooke van Velden
Hon Brooke van Velden
Minister of Internal Affairs
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Secretary’s report 

Tēnā koutou katoa
The 2023/24 year has been characterised by continued high demand 
for advisory support and funding from communities, hapū and 
iwi. This is particularly evident among those still recovering from 
Cyclone Gabrielle who are now focused on their medium to long-
term recovery efforts. In September the Board allocated an additional $5.7 million to assist 
recovery in the three regions most affected by Cyclone Gabrielle.

Lottery profits remained high with the 2023/24 allocation the fourth highest on record 
despite a reduction in funding available for distribution from the previous year. The Board 
chose to maintain allocation amounts to its Lottery Community, Lottery Oranga Marae, 
Lottery Individuals with Disabilities and Lottery Outdoor Safety committees, and Water 
Safety. This saw a reduced allocation to its remaining national committees, which required 
more refined, thoughtful and prioritised funding decisions from committee members.

This year the Board adopted the introduction of a draft Statement of Intent, Tiriti o Waitangi 
policy and Equity policy. These documents are a product of the ‘Kia Tipu, He Tipua’ 
programme of work, and contribute to the Board’s ambition to make the lottery grants 
system easier and fairer for communities, hapū and iwi. These documents signal the change 
in direction the Board is taking and marks a major milestone for the Board. 

There was a decrease in the amount of grants this year
In 2023/24 we received 4,746 applications requesting $431.3 million in funding. The 
committees and the Minister of Internal Affairs awarded 3,127 grants totalling $159.7 million. 
This was a 5 per cent decrease in the number of applications received compared with 
2022/23, as well as a 19 per cent decrease in the number of grants approved. The decrease 
was largely due to the reduction in available funding compared to the previous year. 
Committees had a difficult task of prioritising their funding decisions and looking at ways to 
maximise the impact of funding.

The Board is developing an accountability framework
Through the work to evolve the lottery grants system, the Board identified they would like to 
be better supported at a strategic level by strengthening their accountability framework. 

The Department has been supporting the Board with the development of a suite of policies 
that cover all aspects of governance and management across their system. These will support 
the Board in all things from their authorising environment, legal requirements, to the way 
they will conduct their meetings. This work also supports the Board to set clear expectations 
in relation to the likes of integrity, ethics and standards of conduct. 

We expect the Board will have completed this initial work by the end of the 2024 calendar 
year.
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The Department is changing the way we do things at an operational level
This year I have taken a closer look at the Hāpai Hapori Community Operations delivery 
model to ensure it best supports the strategic direction for the evolved lottery grants system. 
While our structure supports this already, we need to adjust our ways of working to be more 
accessible, fairer, efficient, and unlock greater impact for community, hapū and iwi. 

For Hāpai Hapori Community Operations, we will have a tighter focus on strategic priorities, 
focusing our time on those that need our support and aligning relational efforts to where 
the greatest impact and outcomes can be achieved. We will also simplify things for those 
communities, hapū and iwi that are regular funding recipients.

This will require us to make a series of changes over a period of 4 years. Over this time, Hāpai 
Hapori Community Operations services and grant-funding will become easier to navigate and 
more responsive to applicants’ different needs. Through this, we expect communities across 
Aotearoa New Zealand to experience a simpler and more equitable funding ecosystem in the 
future. 

Although our ways of working are evolving, our support for communities, hapū and iwi to 
lead their own development remains the same. 

Looking ahead to 2024/25
The forecasted increase in funding available for allocation in 2024/25 will further support 
communities, hapū and iwi to build on their strengths and to develop their long-term 
aspirations. We look forward to collaborating with groups and organisations to support their 
initiatives.

We will continue to support the Board with evolving their lottery grants and advisory system 
to be more responsive, inclusive, strategic and recognise Te Tiriti o Waitangi. Although the 
‘Kia Tipu, He Tipua’ programme of work officially concluded at the end of June 2024, ongoing 
work has been integrated into business-as-usual. 

Applicants will start to see simplifications in the way they apply for funding, which will be 
introduced in the first opening round of Lottery Community in 2024/25.

Thank you to those who have contributed
I would like to extend my appreciation to the outgoing presiding and committee members 
for their dedicated support throughout their terms. Each member has played a critical 
role in ensuring responsible funding distribution, bringing valuable skills, experience, and 
knowledge to their committees.

I would also like to thank my team and the other Department of Internal Affairs kaimahi 
for their hard mahi this year. Your work enables us to provide vital support that makes a 
difference for communities, hapū and iwi across Aotearoa New Zealand.
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This year members of our Napier, Rotorua and Gisborne team were recognised by the 
Department for their immense support within communities, hapū and iwi in the wake of 
Cyclone Gabrielle. This team won the ‘Thriving Communities’ category of the Department’s 
awards, which was a great recognition of their hard work. Our Hawke’s Bay Community 
Advisor, Norman Apirana, also won the Chief Executive’s Award for Spirit of Service and was 
recognised for 40 years of service with the Department. 

I would like to acknowledge these achievements, which are a testament to how hard we work 
to progress the Board’s priorities and achieve positive outcomes for communities, hapū and 
iwi.

Clare Toufexis
Secretary of the Board 
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Board liaison members’ report 

As Board liaison members, alongside Board meetings we also attend a combination of 
regional and national distribution committee decision meetings across Aotearoa. We are 
the link between the Board and the lottery distribution committees (committees), and we 
provide guidance and support on Board policy and directions. 

In 2023/24 we welcomed four new members to the Board: Hon Brooke van Velden, Minister 
of Internal Affairs (presiding member), Hon Louise Upston, Minister for the Community and 
Voluntary Sector (Prime Minister’s representative), Lemauga Lydia Sosene, MP (Leader of the 
Opposition’s representative) and Karen Coutts (Board liaison member). 

We would like to recognise the valuable contributions of the Board members that stepped 
down this year. Hon Barbara Edmonds, Hon Priyanca Radhakrishnan, Simon O’Connor, MP 
and Toni Grant, liaison member. Your dedication to supporting communities across Aotearoa 
has been significant and your governance experience has allowed lottery funding to continue 
to deliver meaningful impact for New Zealanders.

The 2024 financial year saw a significant reduction in lottery profits, with the total amount 
available for distribution down by 15% from the previous year. This required the Board to 
make some tough decisions regarding allocation to committees. Ensuring that a wide range 
of priority communities continued to receive funding was paramount. The Board made the 
decision that maintaining allocation levels to regional community committees, the Oranga 
Marae and Individuals with Disabilities committees and outdoor safety funds allowed the 
Board to prioritise community wellbeing and cohesion.

We would like to acknowledge the hard work of the distribution committees and their 
dedication to supporting New Zealand’s communities. We are proud of each committee 
member and the wisdom, intelligence and mana that they bring to their roles. The 
committees’ robust and responsible decision making enables lottery funds to make tangible 
differences for whānau and communities across the country.

The committees are an essential link between communities and Board strategy, and 
their input continues to be of great value to the Board’s strategic direction. The Presiding 
Members’ Policy Advisory Group (PMPAG) meets biannually (including the liaison members) 
to discuss a range of strategic and operational issues and opportunities. These discussions 
are always engaging and constructive and highlight PMPAG’s importance as a strategic 
partner. We would like to thank the presiding committee members who contribute to these 
hui and bring their considerable insight and acumen.
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The Board continues to focus on its strategic direction, a direction that will bring greater 
equity to funding decisions and will support social, cultural and environmental wellbeing 
outcomes for communities. This strategy has been three years in its development, and we 
look forward seeing the embedding of the Board’s outcomes framework over the coming 
years. Lottery grants provide crucial funding for communities, and the Board must ensure 
that this is done with a long-term vision for the future.

As we look to the next financial year, it will be important for the Board to understand how 
impact can best be measured in the community. This is no easy task given the remarkably 
different communities, hapū and iwi across New Zealand, and their varied needs. However, 
measuring impact well will allow for a funding ecosystem that can be both responsive and 
effective. This, in turn, will enable communities to thrive and manifest their own aspirations.

We also like to express our deep thanks to our fellow Board members and Department staff 
who continue to provide us with considered, dedicated and professional support.

Sumati Govind Karen Coutts Colleen Tuuta
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Governance and accountability statement 
Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board (Board) is governed by the Gambling Act 2003 to 
determine how profits generated from the sale of lottery products offered by the Lotteries 
Commission, such as Lotto and Instant Kiwi, are distributed for community purposes and 
specified statutory purposes.1 In addition to powers specifically provided in the Act, the 
Board has all the powers that are necessary or expedient to enable it to perform its functions.

The Board has six members: 

•	 the Minister of Internal Affairs, who is the presiding member of the Board; 
•	 the Prime Minister (or their nominated representative); 
•	 the member of the House of Representatives who is for the time being the Leader of the 

Opposition (or their nominated representative); and 
•	 three persons appointed by the Governor-General having regard to the appointee’s 

knowledge, skills and experience relating to functions and powers of the Board.

Under the Act, the Board can make allocations to:

•	 distribution committees established by the Minister to distribute lottery profits for 
community purposes

•	 the Minister for distribution for community purposes
•	 three specified statutory bodies – Creative New Zealand, New Zealand Film Commission 

(including Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision), and Sport New Zealand – for expenditure in 
accordance with their own Acts.

The Board is a schedule 4 organisation that operates under the framework established by the 
Public Finance Act (1989), specifically as outlined in section 291. Despite being accountable 
to Parliament for financial management, the Board is positioned as highly independent 
within the spectrum of public sector organisations and is committed to autonomous 
decision-making.

The distribution committees distribute lottery profits allocated to them by the Board, in line 
with the Board’s strategic direction, values,2 policies and outcomes. A policy advisory group, 
comprising the presiding members of committees, provides advice to the Board on strategic 
and policy issues, and promotes consistent lottery grant policy development. The Board 
liaison members also attend these meetings.

The Board monitors the operations of its distribution committees and the provision of 
administration services, including the investment of undistributed lottery profits by the 
Secretary of the Board.

1	 The Lotteries Commission trades as Lotto NZ.
2	  He tangata, manaakitanga, whanaungatanga, whakapono, and kanohi ki te kanohi.
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Distribution channels
In addition to the Minister’s Discretionary Fund, there are 20 lottery committees. The 
statutory bodies and committees funded by the Board are shown on page 19. 

Each committee distributes grants for a specified range of community purposes. Committees 
comply with general Board policies and directions when prioritising funding. Most 
committees have two distribution meetings each year. A few have one funding round or 
consider applications as they are received. 

Committees comprise of three to five members, appointed by the Minister responsible for the 
Board, for terms of up to three years. The three Board members appointed by the Governor-
General are responsible for liaising with specific committees. 

Each attends committee meetings as an observer. Applications that are for a community 
purpose described by the Gambling Act 2003, but not within the scope of a committee, are 
referred to the Minister’s Discretionary Fund.

Distribution of lottery funding
Committees endeavour to ensure lottery grants are equitably distributed to demographic 
and geographic communities throughout the country. Decisions are guided by the principles 
of lawfulness, accountability, openness, integrity, fairness, and value for money. 

Lottery grants are used exclusively for community purposes as defined in section 277 of 
the Gambling Act 2003, and priority is given to funding initiatives that address community 
needs identified by communities themselves. These initiatives include many developmental 
activities and services that neither government nor the private sector provide, but which are 
sufficiently valued by communities for community members to be prepared to contribute 
labour, money or materials voluntarily. 

The committees recognise that participation in community initiatives builds a sense of 
belonging and up-skills individuals while providing services and activities tailored to the 
needs of particular communities. 

When assessing applications, committees consider:

•	 the community need for the activity or service
•	 community benefit and support for the activity
•	 the fit with Board and committee policy
•	 the feasibility of the planned activity
•	 the on-going capability of the applicant to deliver the community benefits that will address 

a community need.

Care is taken to ensure that lottery funding supports sustainable activity that addresses 
community needs and that unrealistic expectations of future funding are not raised.
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Statutory bodies
The Board allocated $138,700,000 to the statutory bodies listed in section 279 of the 
Gambling Act 2003 and Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision. The amounts received by each were:

•	 Creative New Zealand – $49,500,000
•	 New Zealand Film Commission – $21,500,000
•	 Sport New Zealand – $66,000,000
•	 Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision – $1,700,000

Payments to Ngā Taonga are done in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Department of Internal Affairs and the New Zealand Film Commission.

Creative New Zealand, New Zealand Film Commission and Ngā Taonga (as a charitable 
trust) are accountable to the Minister for Arts, Culture and Heritage for the administration, 
distribution and expenditure of their lottery allocations. Sport New Zealand is accountable to 
the Minister for Sport and Recreation for the administration, distribution and expenditure of 
its lottery funding. Manatū Taonga Ministry for Culture and Heritage is the monitoring agency 
of these organisations. 

The Board also allocated $2,477,314 to Sport New Zealand for the water safety sector. 

Administration of lottery grants
The Board, committees and the Minister’s Discretionary Fund are serviced by the Department 
of Internal Affairs. The Board is consulted on the annual administration budget before it 
is approved by the Minister of Internal Affairs. The range of services purchased from the 
Department are specified in an annual Memorandum of Understanding between the Minister 
of Internal Affairs and the Secretary for Internal Affairs. Secretariat and advisory staff are 
bound by normal Public Service codes of conduct, integrity and accountability.

Accountability
The Board does not hold bank accounts. Instead, the Department operates the bank 
account into which all lottery profits are paid and is responsible for the investment of 
undistributed lottery profits in line with the Board’s investment policy. All allocations, grants, 
administration costs and other miscellaneous expenditure specified in the Gambling Act 2003 
are paid for from this account. The Board accounts for its funds in its annual report, which is 
tabled in the House of Representatives.
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Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board distribution 
of funds 2023/24 

A full list of grants made is available on the Community Matters website at  
www.communitymatters.govt.nz 

* Community Sector Research and Significant Projects Fund were in recess in 2023/24.

Regional

Auckland

Bay of Plenty/Gisborne

Canterbury/Kaikōura

Hawke’s Bay

Manawatū/Whanganui

Northland

Otago/Southland

Taranaki

Waikato

Wellington/Wairarapa

West Coast/  
Nelson-Marlborough

New Zealand Lotteries Commission
provides profits

Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board
allocates funds

Creative New Zealand

New Zealand Film 
Commission

Sport New Zealand

Specialist Committees

Community Facilities

Community Sector 
Research

Environment and 
Heritage

Health Research

Individuals with 
Disabilities

Minister’s Discretionary 
Fund

Oranga Marae

Outdoor Safety

Significant Projects Fund

Statutory Bodies Community 
Committees

National

National Community 
Committee  

Ngā Taonga Sound 
& Vision

http://www.communitymatters.govt.nz
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Lottery specialist committees

Lottery specialist committees consider applications for funds to assist with community 
facilities, projects with environmental or heritage benefits, health research, community 
sector research, physical and cultural revitalisation of marae, aspirations and outdoor safety. 
A Minister’s Discretionary Fund considers initiatives that fall outside the responsibility of 
other committees and have demonstrable community benefit. 

•	 Community Facilities 
•	 Community Sector Research 
•	 Environment and Heritage 
•	 Health Research 
•	 Individuals with Disabilities 
•	 Minister’s Discretionary Fund 
•	 Oranga Marae 
•	 Outdoor Safety 
•	 Significant Projects Fund
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Community Facilities Committee 
Te Tahua Hapori Ngā Whakaurunga

Committee members 
Murali Kumar 

(presiding member from December 2021, resigned May 2024) 
Helen Algar (from November 2022)
Benita Cairns 

(from August 2020, acting presiding member from May 2024)
Dante Fyfe (from November 2021)
Letoa Jenkins (from August 2020, resigned March 2024)

Tātai hono relationships 
The Committee recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori and their protocols. 
E whakatau ana te Tahua Hapori Ngā Whakaurunga i ngā hiahia me ngā tūmanako o te Māori 
me o rātou kawa.

Outcome statement
Increased community participation and social cohesion is increased through the 
development of community facilities.

Committee priorities
Priority is given to projects that: 
•	 are community-led and well-supported by the community 
•	 will meet a community need 
•	 are the right size for that community 
•	 will provide new opportunities for people to be involved with and connected with the 

community, especially: 
	▸ rural and isolated communities 
	▸ disadvantaged groups 
	▸ people who can’t easily access similar or suitable community facilities.

The Committee prefers applications for community facilities that will be used for more than 
one purpose and/or shared. 

The Committee also prefers applications that show the community can develop, run and look 
after the facility in the future, without needing further lottery funding.



22

Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2024

Meeting community needs
In 2023/24 the Committee supported a diverse range of multi-purpose capital works projects. 
Most cater predominantly for local need but may also fulfil a regional need. However, with 
significantly less funding than previous years and high demand on available funding, the 
Committee was not able to grant as many requests as usual.

While making grants according to its priorities and preferences, the Committee has 
supported projects that are located in lower socio-economic or geographically isolated 
communities within New Zealand, are accessible to the wider community and shared by 
multiple groups. 

A grant of $400,000 was awarded to Fakapotopotoga Ekalesia-Kelisiano Tuvalu Ueligitone 
(Fetu) towards the fit out and upgrade of a newly purchased building. It will become a hub 
for the Tuvaluan community in Wellington, fulfilling a long-cherished need of the community 
to preserve and nurture language and cultural practices and also share experiences with the 
wider community.

The Ngāti Maniapoto Marae PACT Trust (Incorporated) in Te Kuiti received a grant of $494,935 
to extend its training facility into a culture centre. This rurally located facility will provide 
local iwi with a place for cultural events and larger scale celebrations, will be utilised by the 
wider community for retreats and events. It will also support rural and isolated communities 
in times of need.

A grant of $121,259 was awarded to the Barrytown Settlers’ Hall Incorporated towards 
the final renovations of the community hall. This hall on the South Island’s West Coast 
provides a space for many community activities including martial arts classes, family events 
and celebrations, community group meetings, educational workshops and as a venue for 
emerging artists.
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Committee
The Committee farewelled and recognised the valuable contribution of the two outgoing 
members, Murali Kumar and Letoa Jenkins.

Murali joined the Committee as the presiding member in December 2021. The Committee 
acknowledge his leadership, particularly during the reduced funding of this financial year, 
and ensuring a focus on supporting priority communities.

Letoa Jenkins had been a committee member since August 2020 and brought a wealth of 
knowledge and understanding of Pasifika communities. The Committee thank Letoa for 
extending his term and being part of the priority setting process.

The Committee continues to see a wide range of excellent projects, large and small, being 
submitted by a diverse mix of community groups, schools, churches and councils.
 

Benita Cairns 
Acting presiding member
Lottery Community Facilities Committee

Lottery Community Facilities Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $14,524,199

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $1,143,101

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $15,667,300

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $61,210,009

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $15,654,549

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $15,654,549

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 247

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 105

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 43%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $650,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $149,091

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $14,000
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Environment and Heritage  
Committee 
Te Tahua Taiao Ngā Taonga

Committee members
Vivienne Shaw 

(from April 2016, presiding member from August 2020) 
Elizabeth Cotton (from October 2021)
Elizabeth Pishief (from October 2018) 
Georgina Morrison (from August 2020) 
Eileen von Dadelszen (from November 2022)

Tātai hono relationships
The Committee recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori, and their protocols.
E whakatau ana Te Tahua Whakamaharatanga ki te Pakanga Tuatahi o te Ao, te Taiao me ngā 
Taonga Tuku Iho I ngā hiahia me ngā tūmanako o te Māori me rātou kawa.

Outcome statement 
New Zealand’s natural, physical and cultural heritage is protected, conserved and promoted.

Committee priorities
Priority is given to natural heritage projects that: 
•	 protect and restore habitats and ecosystems for native plants or animals
•	 protect and conserve native plants or animals that are rare, in danger, or at risk in their 

habitats
•	 improve public access and information about native plants and animals.

Priority is given to physical heritage projects that: 
•	 restore and protect places, structures or large built objects of significance to our history 
•	 protect and conserve a place, structure or large built object for the future 
•	 improve public access and information about places, structures or large built objects of 

significance to our history. 

Priority is given to cultural heritage projects that: 
•	 protect collections that are at risk of being damaged or lost 
•	 make collections available to the community 
•	 improve public access and information, particularly for young people to learn about and 

experience our cultural heritage 
•	 conserve and protect moveable cultural property, such as photographs, paintings, 

furniture and other artefacts.
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Meeting community needs 
2023/24 presented the Committee with significant challenges, given the reduction in its 
allocation for this financial year. The Committee were faced with a 46% reduction in funding, 
yet at the same time having a significant increase in funding requests.

The Committee took this opportunity to review its priorities, and look at how it would 
address the pressure on funds for this year. It has made decision making tough but the 
Committee continues to assess each project on its own merits, the needs of the community 
and look at how well it aligns with priorities.

The Committee noted, particularly for the natural heritage sector, that there is more demand 
for funding given the ongoing nature of many natural heritage projects – particularly 
important in pest and predator management. At the same time, the Committee also saw 
that there have been changes in available funding for this sector, with Jobs for Nature soon 
coming to an end. This has resulted in many of those community organisations looking for 
funding to continue their ongoing work.

The Committee also appreciates the hard work many community groups are putting in to 
protect nationally endangered species to ensure their survival in the future. One such group 
is the Yellow-Eyed Penguin Trust which was awarded a grant of $167,061 towards its work 
on monitoring the Yellow-Eyed Penguin (Hoiho) and conserving its habitats, particularly 
important given the Hoiho is a nationally endangered species.

The Committee is continuing to see costs for physical heritage projects increase. A few groups 
are finding themselves in a position where they are having to seek additional funding when 
they thought they had full funding in place to proceed. Groups are also having to rely more 
on volunteers to carry out projects to completion. 

It is pleasing to see the success of many community-led projects with strong volunteer 
involvement, especially in the regions. These projects help contribute to the overall wellbeing 
of local communities. One such example of a project that had significant community 
involvement was the Southern Steam Train Trust who were working to restore Locomotive 
F150 in Invercargill. The Trust was awarded a grant of $129,000 towards this work.

The Committee was also delighted to be able to support a nationally significant project 
– awarding a grant of $385,375 for Te Tii Marae towards the Whare Tupuna. The Marae is 
working on a restoration and renovation project to future proof the building which is now 
over 100 years old. 
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Committee 
The Committee continued with the same members, each with strong expertise and 
knowledge of different sectors and regions. The vast experience has aided in productive 
discussions for the Committee especially with the challenging year it faced.

 
Vivienne Shaw
Presiding member 
Lottery Environment and Heritage Committee

Lottery Environment and Heritage Committee 

2023/2024 General allocation $7,506,741

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $380,600

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $7,887,341

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $40,250,688

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $7,839,699

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $7,839,699

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 193

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 102

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 53%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $385,375

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $76,860

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $3,334
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Health Research Committee 
Te Tahua Rangahau Hauora

Committee members
Ridvan Tupai-Firestone  
	 (from May 2019, presiding member from August 2020)
Bill Lu (from August 2020)
Elizabeth Fletcher (from August 2020)
Janine Horton (from August 2022)
Mona Jeffreys (from August 2022)

Tātai hono relationships 
The Committee recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori, and their protocols. 
E whakatau ana te Tahua Rangahau Hauora i ngā hiahia me ngā tūmanako o te Māori, me o 
rātou kawa. 

Outcome statement 
The health status of New Zealanders is improved through research. 

Committee priorities
Priority is given to applications that:
•	 show how the research will translate into better health outcomes for New Zealand 

populations, including Māori and Pasifika
•	 show why the health issue is significant for New Zealand
•	 address a unique gap in health research knowledge in New Zealand
•	 include researchers who will contribute to the New Zealand health sector over time.

For post-doctoral fellowships and PhD scholarships applications, priority is given to:
•	 researchers who are early in their career or entering and/or returning to the New Zealand 

work force
•	 host organisations that show they will provide quality support, management and 

supervision.

For shared equipment and translational research project applications, priority is given to:
•	 collaboration, particularly with significant pieces of research equipment, which should be 

shared between a number of research centres/institutions
•	 projects that have received support from other funders. 
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Meeting community needs 
The requirement for lottery grants to be for a community benefit distinguishes this 
Committee from other health research funders. 

The Committee faced significant challenges during the 2023/24 funding year due to a 
reduction in available funding. There was $2,246,461 available for allocation, representing 
a 46% decrease from the previous financial year. This resulted in a significant decrease of 
applicants able to be supported.

The Committee agreed on a strategic focus, to prioritise the post-doctoral fellowships and 
PhD scholarships funding streams. This was viewed as providing the greatest, ongoing 
benefit to New Zealand communities and to New Zealand’s health research sector at 
large. The Committee supported researchers who are early in their careers through 
PhD scholarships of up to $40,000 per year for three years, and two-year post-doctorate 
fellowships of up to $80,000 per year.

As in all previous years, in alignment with Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board principles, 
the Committee prioritised funding requests that articulated a clear line of research that 
addressed health equity for priority groups, including Māori and Pasifika communities. An 
example of this, the University of Otago received $113,378 towards a co-designed, marae-
based community project assessing and understanding heart health in kaumātua. 

Committee 
The Committee held one meeting in November for the 2023/24 year.
 

Ridvan Tupai-Firestone
Presiding member
Lottery Health Research Committee 
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Lottery Health Research Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $2,238,781

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $361,764

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $2,600,545

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $13,496,223

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,274,997

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $2,274,997

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 120

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 21

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 18%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $160,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $108,333

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $17,000
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Individuals with Disabilities  
Committee 
Te Komiti Rota mō te Tangata whai Hauātanga

Committee members 
Frian Wadia  
	 (from March 2019, presiding member from October 2021)
Dianne Glenn (from August 2020)
Jane Lee (from October 2021)
Sharon Gemmell (from November 2022) 
Fa'amoetauloa Frieda Crawford (from November 2022)

Tātai hono relationships
E whakatau ana Te Komiti mo ngā Tangata Haua I ngā hiahia me ngā tūmanako o te Māori, 
me o rātou kawa.
The Committee recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori and considers te ao Māori 
principles during all decision making.

Outcome statement 
People with disabilities will be more connected with, take part in, and contribute more 
to their community which will help build stronger communities across New Zealand. 
Children, young people and their families with disabilities will have increased access to, and 
participation within, their communities.

Committee priorities
The community benefit aspect in the grant requests is a priority for the Committee and 
we consider an applicant’s history and ongoing likelihood of being active in their local 
community after receiving a grant. The Committee also recognises the benefit to the local 
community through volunteer activities by individuals with disabilities and their families 
and believe that disabled people play a significant role in creating an inclusive and equitable 
society through their presence, participation, and contribution to society. 

The Committee is also mindful of upholding the Enabling Good Lives (EGL) principles and 
ensuring that the experience for applicants is easy to use, mana-enhancing, and allows 
self-determination and control for all applicants to the greatest extent possible. Beginning 
Early (one of the EGL principles) is highly regarded by the Committee and hence children and 
youth are prioritised to ensure they have a good start in life and can actively participate in 
their communities. 
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Meeting community needs 
The Lottery Individuals with Disabilities Fund reduces barriers that restrict life choices for 
disabled people and their families by providing funding assistance towards the purchase of 
mobility and communication equipment as well as assistance dogs. 

If the application is for a child, the grant will assist the family to enable the child to access the 
community to build connections and relationships which are vital to the socioemotional and 
mental wellbeing of both the child and the family. Inclusion of disabled children is a priority 
for the Committee as it supports social cohesion across the community.

The Committee has also been heartening to see many applicants contributing to their 
communities in various ways and the increase in contribution to community when applicants 
are able to access the appropriate mobility and communication support/equipment. 

The Committee notes that isolation due to accessibility barriers and lack of participation 
in community causes significant wellbeing issues and mental health challenges for many 
applicants. While many applicants miss out on funding due to limited funds, the Committee 
is humbled to read of the positive impact the funding has on applicants and their whānau. 

Committee 
The Committee remains the same and is grateful that committee members have confirmed 
their continued commitment to the fund.

Frian Wadia 
Presiding member
Lottery Individuals with Disabilities Committee 
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Lottery Individuals with Disabilities Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $10,295,975

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $311,632

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $10,607,607

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $26,256,687

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $10,515,993

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $10,515,993

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 1150

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 500

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 43%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $50,980

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $16,654

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $169



33

Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2024

Minister’s Discretionary Fund

Presiding member – Hon Brooke van Velden

Outcome statement
Strong sustainable communities.

Priorities
Priority is given to projects that support: 
•	 volunteer firefighting and emergency ambulance services projects
•	 animal welfare projects
•	 learning and development projects.

Meeting community needs
The Minister’s Discretionary Fund responds to community needs that fall outside the 
responsibility areas of lottery distribution committees. This has enabled the fund to support 
projects such as:

•	 The Northland Fire Brigades Sub Association: received a grant to hold the Northland 
Fire Fighters Combat Challenge in the Far North. This gave volunteer firefighters the 
opportunity to test and showcase their skills and aimed to encourage more people to 
become volunteer firefighters.

•	 Te Puke Fire Brigade: received a grant towards a shed for its medical response vehicle, 
support van and rescue equipment. The brigade can now dispatch its medical response 
vehicle faster and has space to store its vital urban search and rescue equipment.

•	 The Royal New Zealand Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Incorporated: 
received a grant for equipment, repairs, and upgrades across 13 of its centres across the 
country. This grant helped improve the standard of care the organisation provides to 
animals and the working conditions of staff and volunteers. 

•	 The Paws for Life Charitable Trust: received a grant to desex abused, abandoned, wild 
and stray cats in Hamilton and the wider Waikato region. This improved the quality of life 
for cats and will reduce the number of stray and wild cats over time, in turn helping protect 
native wildlife. 

In 2023/24 the Board allocated $5 million for the Emergency Natural Disaster Response fund, 
which was administered through the Minister’s Discretionary Fund. This was in response 
to several severe weather events including Cyclone Gabrielle. This funded physical works, 
psychosocial support, and community development initiatives to assist communities 
affected by severe weather events. 
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The types of initiatives supported by this emergency response funding included:

•	 Napier Family Centre Incorporated: received a grant to employ a fixed-term psychologist 
to support community members navigate through trauma, loss, anxiety, and uncertainty in 
the wake of Cyclone Gabrielle. 

•	 Tararua District Council: was granted funding to purchase three generators for 
community deployment in response to adverse events. This allows rural isolated 
communities who lose power, access to communications, and other lifeline activities. 

I look forward to continuing to utilise this fund to benefit the communities of New Zealand. 

Hon Brooke van Velden 
Minister of Internal Affairs 
Minister’s Discretionary Fund
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Minister’s Discretionary Fund

2023/2024 General allocation $1,000,000

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $15,046

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $1,015,046

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $1,852,047

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $918,427

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $918,427

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 118

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 74

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 63%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $80,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $12,411

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $930

Emergency Natural Disaster Response

2023/2024 Special allocation $5,000,000

Funding carried forward from 2022/23 $1,987,573

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $24,725

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $7,012,298

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $2,666,551

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,075,330

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $2,075,330

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 40

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 40

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 100%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $200,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $51,883

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $5,000
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Oranga Marae 

Whatungarongaro te tangata, toitū te whenua, toitū te marae 
Although the people may pass on, the land will remain,  
the marae will remain. 

Nga mema o te Kōmiti, Committee members 
Bonita Bigham 
	 (from April 2019, presiding member from December 2021, resigned February 2024)
Niwa Nuri (from April 2019) 
Rowena Tana (from November 2021, acting presiding member from March 2024)
Tracey Wright-Tawha (from October 2022)

Tātai Hono, Collaboration
Oranga Marae is a funding initiative co-designed by the Department of Internal Affairs 
and Te Puni Kōkiri to enable marae to become self-sustainable and enable thriving Māori 
communities. This co-investment approach provides a single contestable source of funding 
to invest in marae nationwide.

Ko te Kaupapa, The purpose
“Oranga Marae, Oranga Tangata
Ka ora te marae, ka ora te tangata, ka ora te hapū, ka ora te iwi”
“When marae prosper, so do the people”

The purpose of Oranga Marae is to support the physical and cultural vitality of marae as 
centres of Māori identity and Mātauranga. Oranga Marae mātāpono (principles) underline 
this programme: oranga (wellbeing), whanaungatanga (relationships), whakapapa 
(intergenerational) and whairawa (prosperity).

Ngā kaupapa matua o Oranga Marae, Oranga Marae outcomes
Oranga Marae supports the following outcomes:
•	 He ahuru mōwai te marae he wāhi whai oranga – Marae are safe and comfortable 

contributing to well-being
•	 Ko te marae te wāhi e ora ai te reo me ōna tikanga, ko te Mātauranga Māori he taonga 

tuku iho – Marae is the place where Te Reo Māori me ōna tikanga prosper for the 
intergenerational transmission of Mātauranga Māori.

Ngā Whakaarotau, Priorities
•	 Hauora me te Haumarutanga, Tūtohutanga – Health and safety, compliance
•	 Ngā take aituā, ohotata ā-rohe, ā-motu hoki (urupare pae tata, pae tawhiti) – Disaster and 

state of emergency events (mid to long term recovery)
•	 Te whakamāhere te huringa āhuarangi – Climate change planning
•	 Marae are active and the wider whānau are engaged with the cultural and physical 

revitalisation of the marae.
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Nga hiahia o te hāpori, Meeting community needs 
Oranga Marae provides support, advice, and investment to whānau and hapū to help develop 
their marae and achieve their aspirations. This support may include building projects and 
activities to restore cultural knowledge. 

The Oranga Marae programme recognises the ability for marae to provide hapū with 
the space to enact intergenerational transformation that allows them to pass on their 
ancestral knowledge and Mātauranga Māori. A key goal of this programme is to ensure the 
sustainability of marae continues for future generations and creates long-term impact for our 
Māori communities.

Waiaua Marae, Opotiki 
Waiaua Marae trustees had been working with local advisors since 2017 seeking assistance to 
help support the aspirations of the hapū. The trustees identified their first priority being the 
need to extend and upgrade the wharekai Te Puritanga.

In 2019 Waiaua Marae received a grant of $4,500 towards the completion of a Marae 
Development Plan in the first stage in the Oranga Marae programme. In 2022 they then 
applied and were successful for a Technical Feasibility Support grant of $56,400 the second 
stage of the Oranga Marae programme that supported them to achieve the required consents 
necessary to progress the upgrade of the wharekai. Finally in 2023, Waiaua Marae received a 
Marae Development Implementation grant of $1,490,759 for the upgrade of the wharekai. 

On 13 April 2024 the hapū of Ngati Patumoana of Te Whakatohea iwi celebrated the 
re-opening of Te Puritanga and the unveiling of their carved Pou Haki. It was a day of 
celebration and happiness for the hapū and local iwi of Te Whakatohea with hundreds of 
people in attendance.

Karangahape Marae Trust, Te Touwai Kaeo 
The three hapū of Ngati Kaitangata, Ngati Kawau and Whanau pani celebrated as they 
welcomed 2000 uri and manuhiri to the Tuwheratanga of their Marae complex at Te Touwai 
on the 11 November 2023 at 4am. 

A journey of some fifty years in the making of the realisation of their dream, despite their 
valley being prone to flooding and no land to relocate, they were forced to re-develop the 
current site, which meant having to raise the site some two metres, thus requiring a delay of 
six months for the earth works to settle and approval of their civil engineer to commence the 
build. 

Having received a grant from Oranga Marae of $2,939,938, construction of their new complex 
began in September 2022, under the close supervision of their project management team of 
Brewer Davidson Architects of Auckland. 

With the additional support of Foundation North and their own contribution of $600,000 
saw the completion of their fully furnished and equipped complex, three months ahead of 
schedule and on budget.
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A feature of their Wharenui is the adornment of the front and rear walls with images that 
showcase their pepeha and of sites of significance to the three hapū and the beauty of the 
Whangaroa Harbour.

Te Kōmiti, The Committee 
In March 2024 we bid farewell to Bonita Bigham the presiding member and chairperson of 
the Oranga Marae Committee. Bonita held two terms and was an inspiring leader for the 
committee. Bonita left to follow her passion for indigenous research. Tenei te mihi ki a koe e 
te Mareikura.

I have since been re-appointed to the Committee and following Bonita’s departure taken up 
the role of acting presiding member and chairperson of the Oranga Marae Committee. 

As per last year’s report we continue to see the resilience and efforts of marae who have been 
affected by significant weather events that continue to have a major impact on whānau and 
hapū. We would like to acknowledge all our marae throughout the motu for their strength 
and courage in these uncertain times. 

Nāku noa, nā

Rowena Tana 
Acting presiding member
Lottery Oranga Marae Committee

Lottery Oranga Marae Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $35,000,000

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $239,683

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $35,239,683

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $86,576,236

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $35,229,682

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $35,229,682

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 62

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 38

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 61%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,418,840

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $927,097

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $98,763
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Outdoor Safety Committee 
Te Tahua Whakaruruhau

Committee members
Garth Clarricoats  
	 (from March 2015, presiding member from May 2019,  
	 resigned March 2024)
Rob Hewitt  
	 (from September 2016, acting presiding member from April 2024)
Helen Tait (from November 2022)
Brenda Wraight (from November 2022)
Patrick Holmes (from November 2022)

Tātai hono Relationships 
The Committee recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori, and their protocols. 
E whakatau ana te Tahua Whakaruruhau i ngā hiahia me ngā tūmanako o te Māori, me ō 
rātou kawa.

Outcome statement
Enhanced water and outdoor safety for New Zealand communities.

Committee priorities
Priority is given to applications that:
•	 increase collaboration in the water and outdoor safety sector, including sharing 

knowledge, practices and resources
•	 maintain effectiveness and volunteer capability of water and outdoor safety sector 

organisations 
•	 increase water or outdoor safety knowledge and skills in communities, hapū or iwi.

Meeting community needs
The majority of the Committee’s funding continues to be distributed to Surf Life Saving New 
Zealand, Coastguard New Zealand, New Zealand Land Search and Rescue and the Mountain 
Safety Council. These organisations provide the infrastructure needed for a capable and 
effective outdoor safety sector in New Zealand. All four organisations provide outdoor 
accident minimisation, prevention information and awareness activity. Three of them also 
provide search and rescue services.

Surf Life Saving New Zealand received a grant of $2,700,000, around half of which is passed 
on to clubs for their ongoing administration, operational and insurance costs. The grant 
contributed to:

•	 providing patrols using over 4,500 trained lifeguards during weekends and public holidays 
at busy beaches over the summer months at 92 patrol locations
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•	 resourcing 24 hour call out services in collaboration with police and other rescue agencies 
to respond to emergencies outside active patrol hours

•	 working with local authorities to provide signage and safety messaging at beaches
•	 funding a central resource to ensure that the volunteers at club level have the support, 

training and development required to keep lifeguard services operating to a high standard. 

A grant of $2,500,000 to Coastguard New Zealand Tautiaki Moana Aotearoa contributed to 
its 24/7 primary response marine search and rescue services to communities around New 
Zealand’s coastline, major lakes, and rivers. Its operational network comprises 63 maritime 
units, two air patrol units, two communications/operations coordination centres, supported 
by a range of national services.

The Committee granted $1,618,000 to Rapa Taiwhenua New Zealand Land Search and Rescue 
to support a network of volunteers in 60 groups and 11 specialist teams. They provide search 
and rescue services in collaboration with other community groups and with a range of 
community-based emergency services. The grant contributes to maintaining effective and 
capable volunteers, and sufficient capacity to meet the requirements of New Zealand’s two 
coordinating agencies, the New Zealand Police and the New Zealand Rescue Coordination 
Centre.

The Mountain Safety Council received a grant of $1,479,000 to collaborate with its 25 council 
members and multiple partner organisations to lead prevention activity aimed at ensuring 
everyone using the outdoors makes it home safely. Its focus is on the people, places, and 
activities with the highest safety risk through:

•	 understanding what’s causing current safety issues (insights)
•	 maintaining relationships to reach and influence those most in need (partnerships)
•	 developing content that participants can actively use to improve their personal safety 

(messaging). 

Committee
The Committee held one meeting in the 2023/24 financial year. On behalf of the Committee I 
wish to acknowledge the significant contribution made by Garth Clarricoats during his tenure 
as presiding member which commenced in May 2019. Under his leadership the Committee 
encouraged and supported committee grant recipients to enhance their responsiveness to 
the public in both how, and what, services they provide.

Rob Hewitt
Acting presiding member
Lottery Outdoor Safety Committee
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Lottery Outdoor Safety Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $8,293,616

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $8,293,616

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $12,748,260

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $8,293,616

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $8,293,616

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 11

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 4

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 36%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,593,616

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,073,404

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,500,000
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Lottery Community 
Committees
One national committee and 11 regional committees considered applications for community 
initiatives in 2023/24. In allocating funds for projects, community committee members look 
for initiatives that will contribute to building strong, sustainable communities, enhance the 
social, cultural and economic wellbeing of New Zealand communities, encourage community 
self-reliance, capacity-building and stability, offer opportunities for social, civil or cultural 
participation, and reduce or overcome barriers to such participation.

Each committee sets its own priorities within these objectives to take into account its region’s 
characteristics. 
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National Community Committee
Te Tahua Hapori Ngā Whakaurunga 

Committee members 
Garth Clarricoats 

(from March 2015, presiding member from May 2019, resigned 
March 2024)

Rob Hewitt 
(from September 2016, acting presiding member from April 2024)

Brenda Wraight (from March 2023)
Helen Tait (from March 2023)
Patrick Holmes (from March 2023)

Outcome statement 
Lottery National Community Committee supports activities that encourage rerekē mō te 
pai (change for the better), te tipu toitū (sustainable growth) and te kotahitanga i roto i te 
kanorautanga (unity in diversity).

Committee priorities
Our priorities are activities that contribute towards, but are not limited to:
•	 Māori achieving their aspirations 
•	 Pasifika and ethnic communities thriving
•	 community-led solutions that support the wellbeing and resilience of diverse 

communities.

Preference will be given to requests showing:
•	 innovation, collaboration, inclusion and impact
•	 community-led development
•	 strength based and/or capability and capacity-building activities.

Lower priority is given to requests from:
•	 organisations with significant reserves
•	 specific health, disability, education, sports or arts programmes that don’t align with the 

Lottery Community committee priorities.

Meeting community needs 
As a result of the reduction in lottery profits the Committee experienced a 46% reduction 
in the allocation it had available to distribute to applicants. This created challenges for the 
Committee and meant that it had to make difficult decisions as the oversubscription rate 
increased significantly. The Committee concentrated its support towards Māori, Pasifika and 
priority communities while also recognising that where there is significant collaboration the 
funding could have greater impact. However, ultimately the Committee was not able to fund 
as many requests as the previous year. 
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The Committee has supported Para Kore Marae Incorporated to continue its work to provide 
te ao Māori digital waste reduction resources. Based in Raglan, the group works with mainly 
marae, throughout the motu using its waste minimisation programme that shares knowledge 
about reducing, reusing, recycling and composting. It has also developed an online format to 
allow wider access to the knowledge and resources for marae. The group empowers whānau, 
hapū, and iwi to work collaboratively towards a sustainable future based in te ao Māori.

The Committee also supported the Māori Literature Trust Te Waka Take Kōrero. The group 
works to amplify Māori voices by supporting Māori storytellers. The group has the ambitious 
vision “E tuhi, taki mai i te ao Māori ki te ao whānui - taking Māori voices to the world”. It 
provides opportunities to promote Māori writers, their stories and their knowledge. The Trust 
works to foster a new generation of Māori writers demonstrating what it means to be Māori, 
offering rich and diverse stories reflecting cultural identity.

Failoa Famili is another organisation the Committee supported to provide social and 
wellbeing services that give wraparound holistic support that allow Pasifika youth, families 
and communities to thrive. The group uses a strengths-based holistic model that is informed 
by its Pasifika values and purpose. It concentrates on preventative measures that include 
community education workshops and programmes that provide skills and empower the 
Pasifika community for lifelong learning. The solutions-focused approach is driven by 
community need and puts children and young people at the centre of what it does. 

Committee 
The Committee was sad to farewell longstanding member and presiding member, Garth 
Clarricoats, after nine years on the Committee at its March meeting. As well as his years with 
the Committee, Garth had a significant role during the Covid-19 lockdowns supporting the 
Lottery Covid-19 Community Wellbeing Fund. Garth made a great contribution to the work of 
the Committee and his depth of knowledge and experience will be missed.

The Committee has valued the support of Department of Internal Affairs staff for their work 
with communities and their ongoing support to the Committee throughout the year.

Rob Hewitt
Acting presiding member
Lottery National Community Committee 
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Lottery National Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $11,425,634

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $133,254

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $11,558,888

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $41,092,513

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$5,810,903

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $5,747,984

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $11,558,887

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 319

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 159

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 50%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $150,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $36,151

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $5,000
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Community committees
Ngā Tahua Whakatinana Papakāinga ā Rohe

Mission/Te Whakatakanga
The wellbeing of New Zealanders and their community is enhanced.

Tātai hono relationships
Lottery Community recognises the aspirations and needs of Māori, and their protocols.
E whakatau ana te Tahua Whakatinana Papakāinga i ngā hiahia me ngā tū manako o te Māori, 
me ō rātou kawa. 

Committees
The 11 lottery regional committees, based across New Zealand, consider applications for 
projects and activities with a local and regional focus.

Committee members are locally based and have a good understanding of community issues, 
demographics and dynamics. This enables them to consider and grant funds to projects that 
best match the objectives of the committees with the evolving needs of their communities.

Outputs
In 2023/24 Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board allocated lottery regional committees the 
following funds to distribute:

Community committees $

Lottery Auckland Community $24,571,513

Lottery Bay of Plenty / Gisborne Community $7,148,897

Lottery Canterbury / Kaikōura Community $9,042,990

Lottery Hawke's Bay Community $3,186,529

Lottery Manawatū / Whanganui Community $5,073,892

Lottery Northland Community $4,717,185

Lottery Otago / Southland Community $5,725,961

Lottery Taranaki Community $2,560,635

Lottery Waikato Community $9,701,012

Lottery Wellington / Wairarapa Community $7,011,688

Lottery West Coast / Nelson-Marlborough Community $3,520,569
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Grants were available for not-for-profit organisations with a community or social service 
focus for projects or services which help improve the quality of people’s lives in their 
communities, including:

•	 development or preventative projects
•	 welfare and support services
•	 information or awareness raising activities
•	 projects that encourage people to take part in their community
•	 projects that encourage community and/or cultural identity or understanding
•	 activities that help develop organisations and their people, particularly those who 

volunteer.

Otago/Southland

(includes Chatham Islands)

West Coast/  
Nelson-Marlborough

Canterbury/
Kaikōura

Northland

Auckland

Waikato
Bay of Plenty/  
Gisborne

Taranaki

Manawatū/
Whanganui

 Hawke’s Bay

Wellington/ 
Wairarapa
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Auckland Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Tāmaki Makaurau

Committee members  
Richard Pamatatau  
	 (from June 2017, presiding member from May 2019) 
Anne Candy (from May 2019) 
Therese Lanigan Behrent (from May 2019) 
Sook (Grace) Ryu (from May 2019) 
Richard Leung (from October 2021)

Outcome statement 
The cultural, social, and economic wellbeing of Tāmaki Makaurau communities is enhanced. 

Committee priorities
Priority is given to applicants where they evidence: 
•	 Māori communities have strong connections, are living well and supporting themselves 

and others to succeed
•	 Pasifika communities are connected and empowered to support young people, elders and 

families/fanau
•	 local groups are strengthened to deliver community-led solutions to support the welfare 

and resilience of diverse local communities.

Lower priority will be given to organisations that are receiving government funding and are 
unable to demonstrate community need and benefits over and above their contracts.

Meeting community needs 
The Committee endeavoured to make responsive decisions that account for the region’s 
demographics and support more kaupapa Māori groups and Pasifika communities. The 
Committee outcomes continued to focus on the benefit and impact of local people and 
initiatives with an emphasis on wellbeing. 

Makaurau Marae Reservation Trust received a grant of $100,000 to ensure marae facilities 
and grounds are safe for whānau, rangatahi and kaumatua. Makaurau marae is located in 
Ihumaatao, Mangere. Makaurau marae stands in close proximity to the Manukau Harbour, the 
historic Otuataua Stonefields and close to Auckland Airport. It is an ancestral marae, central 
to the people at Ihumatao and is well connected in the wider Auckland area. There has been 
an increase in demand for marae use from its beneficiaries and wider community groups, and 
the grant has enabled the appropriate capacity to maintain the high level of manaakitanga 
that the marae is known for.

Whau Pasifika Trust received a grant $138,000 towards operating costs. The group was 
established in June 2019 to improve inclusion and support for the Whau Pacific residents. 
Some of the services and programmes available are mentoring, advocacy and community 
support enabling engagement amongst Pacific Peoples living and working in Whau. They 
also support local community groups, residents and schools with workshops, resources 
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and events. A couple of successes to date have been hosting the 2023 Whau Pasifika Festival 
and the launching of the first ever Whau Schools debate - a new annual inter schools 
debate. However they state that their greatest pathway achievement was seeded at the 
pilot Rosebank School holiday programme. One of the workshops was a laptop refurbishing 
opportunity for 7- to 18-year-olds, and one of the teenagers who did the workshop back then 
is now on a paid 30 hour p/w contract as a laptop refurb technician.

Waiuku Family Support Network Community Trust Board received a grant of $81,000 
towards operating costs. They have been providing support and services to the Waiuku and 
wider community since 1987. The group started as an information service and now offer a 
holistic, korowai (wrap-around) approach to supporting people. The team includes qualified 
specialists who work together to support people to overcome difficulties that prevent them 
achieving their potential. Their services have positively impacted on various age groups and 
ethnicities fostering a sense of connectivity and has further solidified their role as a hub for 
and with supporting the Waiuku Community and beyond.

Committee 
The Committee noted that the cost of living has added to the pressure on funding, 
particularly from groups working at the frontline, already supporting vulnerable communities 
with associated pressures. As a result funding decisions were difficult, but we are confident 
grants were placed where we will see positive and ongoing outcomes.
 

Richard Pamatatau 
Presiding member 
Lottery Auckland Community Committee

Lottery Auckland Community Committee 

2023/2024 General allocation $24,571,513

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $137,998

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $24,709,511

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $46,607,455

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 2023/2024 $4,038,089

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $20,614,404

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $24,652,493

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 540

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 458

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 85%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $340,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $45,010

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,000
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Bay of Plenty/Gisborne  
Community Committee
Rota ki te Hapori o Te Moana-a-Toi/ 
Tūranganui-a-Kiwa

Committee members 
Rose Gould-Lardelli 

(from October 2018, presiding member from March 2023) 
Carol Quirk QSM (from May 2019) 
Suki Xiao (from November 2022) 

Outcome statement 
The social and economic wellbeing of the Bay of Plenty and Gisborne communities is 
enhanced, and community participation is encouraged. 

Committee priorities
Priority is given to applicants where:
•	 community resilience is supported through recovery from significant adverse events 
•	 Māori are achieving their cultural aspirations and building whānau and hapū capability 
•	 individuals, communities and organisations work together using innovative, collaborative 

and strength-based approaches to increase capabilities and reach their potential 
•	 the wellbeing, safety, and quality of life for individuals, whānau, hapū, communities and 

the vulnerable is strengthened 
•	 kaitiakitanga and care for the environment is enhanced 
•	 the rurally and/or socially isolated are connected and engaged.

Meeting community needs 
Families Achieving Balance (FAB) operating out of Tauranga, employ four qualified 
social workers and one specialist intervention worker qualified in Social Science, who 
are specialists in the fields of family work, youth, children, woman and victims of family 
violence, and perpetrators of family violence. FAB staff provide a holistic service with 
one-on-one support, family therapy, family meetings and mediation, youth mentoring, 
parenting support, anger management, nonviolence programmes, safety programmes and 
grandparent support. FAB have a range of programmes that address most needs of all family/
whānau members. The Committee was able to support the great work of FAB with a lottery 
community grant of $50,000.

A $60,000 lottery community grant assisted the Gisborne Volunteer Centre to continue 
their mahi in: facilitating community connections; linking people wishing to volunteer with 
community groups; working together with community groups to achieve good outcomes; 
sharing information, support and advice; facilitating a local volunteer coordinators’ peer 
network group that meets monthly; supporting volunteer coordinators to encourage 
best practice management of volunteer-involving programmes; providing workshops; 
collaborating with community organisations, statutory groups and the community to ensure 
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the volunteer community is strengthened, well supported and recognised. This grant will 
contribute to building community resilience that supports recovery through significant 
social challenges and adverse events. It also contributes to increasing capacity and helping 
individuals and community groups reach their potential.

Have a Heart Charitable Trust received a $80,000 lottery community grant to help meet 
the needs of people in the community that are considered at risk or disadvantaged, where 
community resilience is supported through recovery from social challenges and adverse 
events. Have a Heart Charitable Trust’s main aim is to “grow great families at the heart of 
our Community”, connecting with those most vulnerable, and creating “safe homes and 
happy families”. Have a Heart work collaboratively with other organisations, and provide 
opportunities, through their events, projects, activities, and services, for those with a 
particular need to make connections with whoever has the resources, skill, and ability to 
make life better.

Committee 
The Bay of Plenty/Gisborne Community Committee has been operating with three members 
over the past 12 months. They have done so effectively and professionally showing diligence 
and community oversight, this is a testament to the commitment of our committee members 
and their desire to see positive outcomes in our communities. 

The Committee acknowledges the hard work of Department of Internal Affairs staff in the Bay 
of Plenty/Gisborne Area. Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board is also acknowledged for their 
on-going support. 

Heoi ano, e rere nei ko nga mihi ki a tatau katoa 

Rose Gould-Lardelli 
Presiding member
Lottery Bay of Plenty/Gisborne Community Committee 
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Lottery Bay of Plenty/Gisborne Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $7,148,897

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $75,159

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $7,224,056

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $8,886,169

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 2023/2024 $2,297,092

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $4,783,068

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $7,080,160

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 173

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 162

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 94%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $230,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $29,525

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,000

Bay of Plenty/Gisborne Community Tairāwhiti Regional Recovery

2023/2024 Special allocation $2,279,400

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $2,279,400

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $43,274

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $43,274

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $43,274

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 1

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 1

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 100%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $43,274

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $43,274

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $43,274
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Canterbury/Kaikōura  
Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Waitaha/Kaikōura

Committee members
Kerry Stevens 

(from May 2019, presiding member from August 2023)
Elizabeth Lovell 

(from March 2017, presiding member from May 2019 to August 2023)
Sina Cotter Tait (from May 2019)
Dr David Ivory (from October 2022)
Claire Waghorn (from August 2020)

Outcome statement 
The Committee will enhance the social, cultural, and economic wellbeing of the Canterbury/
Kaikōura communities. Support will be given to social service providers and community 
groups that demonstrate collaboration, good governance, sound financial management and 
support for their volunteers, and clearly define their community’s outcomes.

Committee priorities
•	 Māori are achieving their aspirations and building capability across their whānau, hapū, 

iwi. This includes projects that demonstrate kaitiakitanga and authentic (collaborative/
partnership) relationships with mana whenua

•	 Pasifika and ethnic communities are achieving their aspirations, and building capability 
across their communities

•	 community-led and/or collaborative projects that are responding to identified community 
needs

•	 vulnerable and disadvantaged people are achieving a higher quality of life
•	 wellbeing and social connectedness within communities is enhanced.

Meeting community needs 
From Kaikōura in the north to Waimate in the south, Arthur’s Pass in the west to Banks 
Peninsula in the east, and the remote Chatham Islands, our region covers a very large area 
of the South Island’s central east coast. Greater Christchurch (Christchurch City, Waimakariri 
and Selwyn Districts) comprises 82% of the region’s population in predominantly urban 
communities, with the remaining 18% living in rural areas, settlements and towns scattered 
throughout the rohe. Hence, Canterbury/Kaikōura’s community needs are as diverse as the 
many different communities that we serve.

The Committee strives to make responsive and equitable decisions that not only meet the 
region’s community needs, but also support Māori, Pasifika and ethnic communities to 
achieve their aspirations. Recent trends we have noticed include more applications from 
organisations that provide food security, and more applications from Māori, Pasifika and 
ethnic groups.
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Committee decisions over the past year that reflect the diversity of grants awarded to meet 
the diverse community needs, include:

Aranui Community Trust Incorporated received $70,000 for the delivery and facilitation 
of their programmes and services that contribute to achieving positive outcomes for the 
residents of Aranui.

Canterbury Refugee Resettlement and Resource Centre were granted $80,000 to support 
their operational costs. This will support the refugee population to live well in New 
Zealand and support participation in the communities they live in. 

Moana Vā, Navigators of Pacific Pride, received $50,000 to support Pacific Rainbow 
communities by socialising, meeting, hosting workshops, building support networks and 
capabilities to train facilitators to educate communities of Pacific Rainbow pedagogies, 
worldviews and realities. They do this by providing a safe space for those to feel they can 
be themselves and embrace their full cultural and sexual identity. 

Committee 
I have been a committee member since May 2019 and was appointed as presiding member 
in August 2023. It is a privilege to serve on the Committee, working alongside such dedicated 
and capable people who strive to support those who provide care for diverse communities 
throughout the Canterbury and Kaikōura rohe.

I acknowledge and thank my predecessor, Liz Lovell, who provided wonderful leadership, 
knowledge, experience and guidance over many years. Liz led the Committee through the 
trying period of Covid-19, guided our response to the social impacts of both earthquakes and 
terrorism, and also provided oversight for new innovations such as Funding for Change. We 
thank Liz most sincerely for her support and wish her well for the future.

The Committee is comprised of talented and skilled people from diverse backgrounds who 
bring a wide range of perspectives and knowledge to the decision-making table. Hence, I 
am confident that we strive to perform our decision-making mahi in the best interests of our 
many and varied communities across the Canterbury and Kaikōura regions.
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Looking ahead, we look forward not only to the appointment of two new committee 
members, but also to the opportunities/challenges that will undoubtedly arise as we 
implement Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board’s new strategic direction, which is currently 
under development.

Nō reira, tēnā koutou, tēnā koutou, tēnā tatou katoa.

Kerry Stevens
Presiding member
Lottery Canterbury/Kaikōura Community Committee 

Lottery Canterbury/Kaikōura Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $9,042,990

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $23,296

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $9,066,286

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $12,966,132

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$2,431,930

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $6,634,355

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $9,066,285

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 296

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 238

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 80%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $150,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $27,875

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,480
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Hawke’s Bay Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Te Matau-a-Māui

Committee members
Reremoana Houkamau 

(from June 2017, acting presiding member from July 2023)
Levi Walford (from May 2019)
Talalelei Taufale (from October 2021)
Tessa Robin (from November 2022)
John Worden (from October 2018, presiding member from October 2022 to July 2023)

Outcome statement
The Hawke’s Bay community embraces cultural diversity and achieves improved well-being. 
The local community uses innovative approaches to actively collaborate with others to 
provide effective and efficient services. 

Committee priorities
Priority is given to organisations that:
•	 engage effectively with Māori to build whānau and hapū capability
•	 evidence collaboration with other to provide effective services and reduce duplication of 

effort and resources
•	 empower and increase the resilience of young and older people to enable them to 

participate fully in their community
•	 improve access to and deliver effective services to rural and isolated communities
•	 support community resilience through recovery from significant social challenges and 

adverse events. 

Meeting community needs
This year the Committee supported a range of organisations across the community and 
voluntary sector. 

Adaptive Whakauru Tahi received a grant of $60,000 to deliver a variety of fitness classes and 
social programmes for people with disabilities. The activities are designed to help individuals 
improve their physical strength, flexibility, balance, and endurance. Their focus is to improve 
the overall health and wellbeing of people with disabilities. 

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Hawke’s Bay received a grant of $30,000 to support children facing 
adversity with one-to-one mentoring relationships to support their growth and development. 
They match children aged six to eleven years old with mentors from the community for at 
least one year, preferably longer if needed. 

Adventure Wairoa Incorporated received a grant of $11,170 to purchase waka ama boats and 
paddles. In 2015, the group (formerly known as the Wairoa Rowing Club) decided to breathe 
new life into their club by introducing more sporting codes including: waka ama, multi & tri 
-sport, road cycling, mountain biking and rowing. The group is focussed towards providing 
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more exciting sporting and recreational opportunities for their small town and the wider 
Wairoa District. 

Committee
In July 2023 we farewelled John Worden who was a committee member since October 
2018 and presiding member from October 2022. He brought a wealth of community and 
voluntary sector knowledge as well as a strong set of governance skills. We thank John for his 
contribution to this committee and his years of service to our community. And we wish him a 
happy and well-deserved retirement. 

In October 2023, we held our committee allocation meeting in Wairoa where the committee 
members, and Board liaison member, were able to see first-hand the impact of Cyclone 
Gabrielle across the district. Following this the Committee are even more committed to 
supporting the long tail of recovery. And we thank Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board for its 
continued support for Hawke’s Bay and other affected regions. 

I would like to thank the Committee for their support during my time as acting presiding 
member. I have valued their scope and breadth of knowledge of their communities where I 
am confident our decisions have made a positive difference across our communities. 

Lastly, we the Committee thank the Department of Internal Affairs staff for all their support 
and hard work over the last year. 

Ngā mihi ki a koutou katoa 

Reremoana Houkamau 
Acting presiding member
Lottery Hawke’s Bay Community Committee
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Lottery Hawke’s Bay Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $3,186,529

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $3,366

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $3,189,895

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $6,952,698

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$310,000

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,857,171

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $3,167,171

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 103

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 85

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 83%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $173,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $33,614

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $3,000

Hawke’s Bay Community Te Matau-a-Māui Regional Recovery

2023/2024 Special allocation $2,279,400

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $2,279,400

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $4,698,135

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,238,825

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $1,238,825

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 7

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 6

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 86%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $854,100

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $206,471

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $30,000
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Manawatū/Whanganui  
Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Manawatū/Whanganui

Committee members 
Victoria Kaye-Simmons  
	 (from November 2022, presiding member from June 2023) 
Stephen Paewai (from June 2017)
Johanna Wood (from June 2017)
Michelle Fannin (from August 2020) 
Nola Fox (from November 2022)

Outcome statement 
Building strong, sustainable communities with an emphasis on social and cultural wellbeing 
and development.

Committee priorities
The Manawatū/Whanganui Committee will prioritise social services and/or locally based 
community-led initiatives that demonstrate collaboration.

A request will be considered lower priority if:
•	 organisations’ mahi that appear to not be connected in community
•	 organisations who do not demonstrate wider community benefit beyond their 

membership
•	 organisations that currently receive government funding, but are unable to show 

community need and benefit over and above their contracts. 

Meeting community needs 
The Manawatū/Whanganui region encompasses seven territorial authorities across the wider 
population of just under 250,000 people. Relationships between the Department and these 
territorial authorities are being strengthened. Nearly 25% of the population is Māori and the 
median age of the area is 41 years old. Due to boundaries, there are areas of this region who 
feel that they do not receive the necessary support or services. This can be felt strongly in 
Taumarunui (Ruapehu), Tararua and Horowhenua.

Here are some examples of groups that have been funded this year:

Life To The Max Trust Whanganui (LTTMT) was awarded $80,000 over two years to continue 
to provide intensive, wrap around services for children who are at high risk of achieving 
poor life outcomes whether through familial neglect, limited familial resources or skills, 
familial dysfunction or harmful associations with others. LTTMT targets all facets of their 
young clients’ lives concentrating on the cornerstones of whānau, education, recreation and 
community. In delivering intensive programmes to children they also deliver programmes to 
parents and other whānau to holistically address the risk factors our clients present with.
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Manchester House Social Services was awarded $62,000 for one year to offer crucial social 
work services in the Manawatū to more than 1,000 clients over the last year helping them to 
build resilience in an ever-changing community/world.

Committee 
The Committee is made up of members who bring a wide range of perspectives and 
knowledge to the decision table. The level of grants requested is significantly higher 
compared to available funding which makes collaboration within the community sector and 
communities even more important. The Committee appreciated the high level of support 
from the Department of Internal Affairs during the year.
 

Victoria Kaye-Simmons
Presiding member 
Lottery Manawatū/Whanganui Community Committee 

Lottery Manawatū/Whanganui Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $5,073,892

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $130,154

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $5,204,046

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $7,865,902

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$1,290,200

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $3,913,846

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $5,204,046

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 197

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 174

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 88%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $90,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $22,493

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,000
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Northland Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Te Tai Tokerau

Committee members
Ralph Correa  
	 (from May 2019, presiding member from November 2022)
Teresa Lomas (from June 2017)
Rahuia Kapa (from June 2017) 
Jonny Gritt (from May 2019)

Outcome statement 
The social, economic and physical wellbeing of Northland’s communities is enhanced.

Committee priorities
The Committee prioritise programmes and projects that ensure:
•	 Māori are achieving their cultural aspirations and building whānau and hapū capability
•	 all people, communities and groups within Tai Tokerau are supported to increase their 

capabilities, to unlock their potential and to achieve their goals
•	 the wellbeing, safety and quality of life for individuals, whānau and communities are 

enhanced
•	 kaitiakitanga and care for the environment is enhanced
•	 to promote social, economic and cultural equity.

Meeting community needs 
The Committee endeavoured to make responsive decisions with consideration for the 
unique challenges of Northland communities, which include high levels of social deprivation, 
geographic isolation and limited access to services.

In line with the Committee’s priorities, we were able to fund 63 kaupapa Māori organisations 
this year. Out of these, 33 were marae, which received support for operational expenses, 
maintenance, repairs, equipment purchases, and minor capital items.

Mangaiti Marae was awarded $35,960 towards essential repairs to wharekai. The repairs will 
enable the marae to reopen having been closed since 2020. A functioning marae will enable 
whānau to have a place to gather and promote a sense of pride for rangatahi and encourage 
participation in marae activities and upkeep.

Taimahi Trust received a grant of $40,000 towards operational costs. Taimahi Trust provides 
on the job training for young adults with disabilities by creating and operating micro-
businesses in retail, gardening and hospitality, providing meaningful work, which fosters real 
life work skills and enables independence. 

Bream Head Conservation Trust received $20,000 towards cost of biodiversity conservation 
services delivered by the trust ranger team. Bream Head Conservation Trust restore and 
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maintain the ecological environment of the Bream Head Scenic Reserve and enhance the 
recreational and educational potential of the reserve.

Onerahi Rugby Football Club was awarded $36,005 towards costs to upgrade kitchen facilities 
with commercial appliances and equipment to operate within council guidelines and provide 
a service in the community. Onerahi Rugby Football Club provide a safe space for hapori 
to engage in sport and activities, bringing whānau together for community events and 
celebrations. The club focuses on whānau to feel empowered and have a sense of belonging, 
contributing to building a healthy inclusive community.

Committee 
The Committee would like to acknowledge Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board for the 
allocation of additional funding for recovery from Cyclone Gabrielle that was utilised to 
support the marae preparedness aspects of the Regional Recovery Plan. 

The Committee has valued the support of staff from the Department of Internal Affairs’ 
northern offices for their work with communities and their on-going support throughout the 
year.
 

Ralph Correa
Presiding member
Lottery Northland Community Committee 
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Lottery Northland Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $4,717,185

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $40,963

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $4,758,148

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $8,171,490

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$142,516

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $4,615,631

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $4,758,147

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 212

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 193

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 91%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $107,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $23,915

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,000

Northland Community Tai Tokerau Regional Recovery

2023/2024 Special allocation $1,139,700

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $1,139,700

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $1,139,700

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,139,700

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $1,139,700

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 12

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 12

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 100%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $309,700

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $94,975

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $15,000
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Otago/Southland  
Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Ōtākou/Murihiku

Committee members
Vanessa van Uden 
	 (from June 2017, presiding member from May 2019) 
Yvonne Bannerman (from November 2018)
Suzanne Menzies-Culling (from November 2018)
Terry Nicholas (from May 2019)
Jill Ridden (from November 2022) 

Outcome statement 
The work we do enhances the social and economic wellbeing of Otago and Southland 
communities.

Committee priorities
Priority is given to:
•	 community-led development initiatives and innovative projects that enable communities to 

determine their own solutions, lead positive change and achieve their own aspirations
•	 communities that lack equity of access to services and resources including geographic and 

isolated communities
•	 events, projects and activities that increase community participation and enhance the 

cultural identity of a community
•	 increased community collaboration between service providers and duplication of services is 

reduced.

Lower priority will be given to:
•	 organisations that have significant uncommitted reserves
•	 organisations who do not demonstrate wider community benefit beyond their membership 

(e.g. education, sports and arts)
•	 topping up existing government contracts.

Meeting community needs 
The Committee covers Otago, Southland and Stewart Island. This includes the main centres of 
Invercargill, Queenstown, Dunedin and Oamaru as well as a number of small rurally isolated 
communities and small towns. 

The Committee prioritises funding requests from applicants whose outcomes most closely 
align with this Committee’s priorities for funding. 

The Committee funded the Southland Multicultural Trust at $50,000 to support the 
organisation to continue activities including cultural events and workshops that promote 
social inclusion and community wellbeing. 
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Te Whare koa Marae trustees were funded $16,000 to support operational expenses to enable 
them to continue to develop and facilitate wānanga: educational mātauranga programmes 
in te reo Māori, raranga (weaving), kapa haka, mau rākau (Māori martial arts & weaponry), 
tikanga (customary protocols), whakairo (carving), and toi Māori (Māori visual arts).

The Pacific Island Advisory Trust received $50,000 to support events, programmes and 
services for elderly, youth, women and families. This includes community activities, cultural 
events, physical and social activities for the elderly and youth of the Pacific Community and 
maintenance and upkeep of their community facilities. 

Wakatipu Youth Trust received $40,000 grant funding for youth workers to provide 
programmes, services and community events to the Wakatipu region which includes a Drop 
In Centre, Youth Programmes, Holiday Programmes, Mentoring, Career, Pop-Up Programmes, 
Events, and the Wakatipu Youth Council.

Committee
I appreciate the experience and community knowledge the committee members bring to 
the table and thank them for their commitment and robust discussions which support our 
decision making. 

Vanessa van Uden
Presiding member
Lottery Otago/Southland Community Committee 

Lottery Otago/Southland Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $5,725,961

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $22,875

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $5,748,836

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $9,892,533

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$1,004,865

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $4,741,154

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $5,746,019

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 258

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 224

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 87%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $100,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $21,456

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,000
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Taranaki Community Committee 
Ehara i te toa i te toa takitahi, engari he toa takitini

Committee members 
Te Aorangi Dillon 

(from May 2019, presiding member from November 2022,  
resigned April 2024)

Sarah Wilks (from August 2020)
Sue Patten (from October 2021)

Outcome statement 
Me tautoko, ka tika.

Committee priorities
Priority is given to applicants who demonstrate: 
•	 access to Mātauranga Māori is supported 
•	 increased community capability to be resilient and responsive to recovery and change 
•	 whānau ora and quality of life are enhanced 
•	 Pasifika communities are innovative and aspirational. 

Lower priority is given to organisations who do not demonstrate wider community benefit 
and organisations who have significant uncommitted reserves. 

Meeting community needs 
The Committee acknowledge their commitment to making decisions that benefit the region 
and support kaupapa Māori organisations through positive outcomes. An increase in the 
amount requested in the 2023/24 financial year presented challenges for the Committee who 
focussed on equity of funding. Initiatives that aligned closely to local priorities were given 
priority. 

New groups continue to access lottery funding, noticeably were marae, hapū and iwi-based 
community groups who have historically not accessed lottery funding. 30% of the annual 
allocation was awarded to kaupapa Māori groups and there is a strong commitment from the 
Committee and local staff to see this percentage grow further. 

Te Reo Irirangi O Taranaki Charitable Trust received $30,000 which enabled them to continue 
to provide broadcasting platforms on air and in video/digital content, they sought to create, 
compile, and transmit Taranaki history, knowledge, and current affairs. 

This allowed greater listening to Iwi radio, increased language usage, greater language 
learning, and proficiency. They aimed to meet a 50% Te Reo O Taranaki me ōna tikanga 
threshold across all platforms and seek to increase the quantity and quality of their 
relationships. This led to a positive impact on Māori language, specifically Taranaki Reo 
revitalisation. 
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Autism Connex Trust received a grant of $15,000 to increase understanding of autism, not just 
with the families/whānau with autism but the wider community who attended the Mind over 
Manner workshops. This enabled a better understanding of autism and how to engage with 
the people who have the condition. This also grew the support network for families/whānau 
who live with autism. 

A $15,000 grant sought by The Village Gallery Incorporated assisted with operating 
costs associated with engaging a part time person to support the volunteer team with 
administration services. The Gallery provides a low cost / free space for local artists to display 
their work and foster and encourage art. The grant enabled the gallery to provide workshops 
for a variety of age groups, providing a social hub for developing artistic skills within the 
community and contributed to positive outcomes around health and wellbeing.

Committee 
The priorities previously set in 2022 remained relevant for the 2023/24 year. The Committee 
acknowledged what was important to the local community to support the intergenerational, 
cultural, and aspirational needs of all people across the Taranaki region.

The Committee continue to keep the community at the forefront of our decision making 
and acknowledge the privileged role we have in allocating resources to support community 
groups, iwi, hapū and the people they work with. 

Membership of the Committee remained at three and we look forward to filling current 
vacancies with representation from across our wider communities.

I wish to thank committee members for their commitment of time and the knowledge they 
bring to the decision-making process.

Te Aorangi Dillon 
Presiding member 
Lottery Taranaki Community Committee 
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Lottery Taranaki Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $2,560,635

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $18,722

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $2,579,357

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $3,425,802

Multi-year amounts approved in 2021/2022 distributed in 
2023/2024

$80

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$354,699

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,218,593

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $2,573,292

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 98

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 85

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 87%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $100,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $26,101

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,309
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Waikato Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Waikato

Committee Members  
Simon Lockwood 

(from March 2015, presiding member from June 2017) 
Te Ariki Paitai (from December 2021 to June 2024) 
Paula Baker (from June 2017)
Jason Howarth (from November 2022)
Gwen Te Pania-Palmer (from July 2019 to September 2023)

Outcome statement and priorities
Enabling our communities to be resiliently engaged and connected with consideration for 
youth, elderly, Māori, rural and ethnic groups.

Meeting community needs 
The priorities set by the Committee acknowledge a commitment to making decisions that 
will benefit the region and support groups to deliver positive outcomes for communities. The 
Committee remained focused on funding initiatives that aligned closest to local priorities 
throughout the heavily oversubscribed funding rounds. 

We continue to see an increase of new groups to the fund and significant increased demand 
from the education and health sectors. Interest from marae, hapū and iwi-based community 
groups who have historically not accessed lottery funding are increasing and small rural 
communities continue have a priority focus for the Committee. 

There is growing emphasis on mana motuhake, or self-determination for Māori. Recent 
political developments have seen increased collaboration between local iwi and government 
agencies, leading to initiatives aimed at empowering Māori communities both economically 
and culturally. This has provided the opportunity for this Committee to participate with 
funding collaboration especially via Funding for Change. 

Waahi Marae Committee was awarded a total of $71,114 (2 grants) to develop, build and 
install mobile digital kiosks which will be a repository for cultural identity by capturing 
history and mātauranga in a digital format. The kiosks are interactive and will be shared with 
local kura and other affiliated marae. This project which includes digitising and modernising 
the storage of intellectual property also includes printed material utilising anime characters 
to appeal to a younger audience. Waahi Paa has utilised the skills and mātauranga of whānau 
members that whakapapa to the Paa to ensure whānau continue to strengthen their cultural 
identity and connectivity to the Paa. 

Mokau Community Trust were awarded $24,000 as a contribution toward several activities 
that aimed to bring the community together and increase community engagement, 
camaraderie and support. These activities included: a monthly meet up group, market day, 
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swimming lessons, a community movie night and defibrillator. All these initiatives express 
community aspirations.

Community Waikato Trust received a grant of $120,000. This organisation provides capacity 
and capability building services to organisations, communities, marae and Māori entities 
throughout the Waikato region. Their aim is to support the develop knowledge and skills for 
entities to organise themselves, operate well and express community voice and participation.

Committee 
I wish to thank committee members for their commitment, time and expertise. Their 
perspective and in-depth knowledge of their communities gives me confidence that we are 
making a difference with our grant decisions. 

This year we farewelled Te Ariki Paitai. I want to acknowledge Te Ariki for his commitment 
to the Committee, his participation and contributions to meetings and his diligence as a 
committee member.

I also wish to acknowledge the passing of committee member, Gwen Te Pania-Palmer, a Māori 
leader and champion of Māori health who sadly passed away on 23 September 2023. Gwen Te 
Pania-Palmer’s service and leadership throughout her distinguished career had a profound 
impact on the communities she served. She sat on the board for organisations including Fire 
Emergency New Zealand, Waikato and Northland Lottery Community committees, Ngāti Hine 
Health Trust and was also the chair for Kotui Hauora. 

On behalf of the Committee, I would like to recognise and thank the volunteers and people 
supporting communities to thrive and grow particularly at a grassroots level. The work they 
do makes a positive difference in the lives of residents.

  

Simon Lockwood
Presiding member 
Lottery Waikato Community Committee 
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Lottery Waikato Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $9,701,012

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $17,651

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $9,718,663

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $13,577,799

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$1,210,000

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $8,508,662

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $9,718,662

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 245

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 191

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 78%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $345,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $44,548

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $1,785
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Wellington/Wairarapa  
Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Te Upoko o te Ika/Wairarapa

Committee member 
John O’Connell (from June 2017, presiding member from May 2019) 
Vanisa Dhiru (from May 2019)
Catherine Rossiter-Stead (from November 2022)

Outcome statement 
The Committee contributes to the building of strong, sustainable communities by 
encouraging or enabling community self-reliance, capacity building and stability. The 
Committee also supports opportunities for social, recreational, civil, or cultural participation 
and reducing or overcoming barriers to participation. 

Committee priorities 
Support will be given to service providers that demonstrate collaboration, are actively 
engaged and contributing to the following social outcomes in their community: 
•	 rangatahi/young people are empowered, engaged and inspired
•	 vulnerable people are connected to their communities and are thriving
•	 wellbeing and connectedness within communities is enhanced
•	 Māori, Pasifika and ethnic communities are empowered, connected and achieving their 

aspirations.

Meeting community needs 
The Committee serves a diverse area encompassing both rural and urban regions. As it 
continues to support the distinct needs of these communities, it will address the unique 
challenges they encounter.

Te Whare Tiaki Wahine Refuge received $84,000 to fund two refuge advocates: one for adult 
women and another specifically for children. Immediate benefits include 24/7 crisis response 
availability and a safe house. The advocacy services provided ensure woman and children 
can quickly access support from other social service providers. The broader community 
outcomes aim to foster a resilient and self-reliant community where women can fully 
participate. 

The Tōku Reo Charitable Trust Board received $40,000 to cover salary costs for delivering 
their Reo 2 Go programmes. These programmes are supported by a network of groups 
that meet both in person and online to facilitate family-oriented activities. Participants 
have access to resources and activities that enhance mental health outcomes by using and 
celebrating Te Reo Māori.
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The Wellington Tongan Leaders Council Trust received a $10,000 grant to support the 
ongoing operational costs of their family and youth service, which offers comprehensive 
health, wellbeing, and mentoring services, along with cultural and language programmes. 
These efforts not only bring the community together but also help individuals connect, 
participate, and build resilience within their communities.

Committee 
In response to promoting collaboration with local councils and funders, the Funding for 
Change initiative continues to offer grants for joint projects. Regarding this initiative, the 
Committee’s priorities have been vulnerable people (with focus on children and young 
people) are safe, healthy, and thriving, community-led development initiatives and 
community initiatives in response to adverse events and enhance resiliency.

The Committee is committed to making a real impact in the community. We held a strategic 
planning session in May 2024 which included a review of our priorities for the 2024/25 
financial year.

John O’Connell
Presiding member
Lottery Wellington/Wairarapa Community Committee 

Lottery Wellington/Wairarapa Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $7,011,688

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $136,066

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $7,147,754

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $13,646,189

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$1,145,621

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $6,002,131

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $7,147,752

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 221

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 189

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 86%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $150,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $31,757

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $3,000
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West Coast/Nelson-Marlborough 
Community Committee 
Rota ki te Hapori o Te Tai Poutini/Whakatū-Wairau

Committee members
Latham Martin 

(from May 2019, presiding member from November 2022) 
Brent Maru (from May 2019) 
Corrina Gestro-Best (from May 2019) 
Corey Hebberd (from August 2020) 
Philippa Burns (from November 2022)

Outcome statement
The social and economic well-being of the West Coast/Nelson-Marlborough communities is 
enhanced.

Committee priorities
Priority will be given to requests that demonstrate effective collaboration, impact and are 
contributing to one or more of the following outcomes:
•	 Māori are achieving their aspirations and building whānau and hapū capability
•	 wellbeing and cohesion within vulnerable and isolated communities is enhanced
•	 communities are resilient and supported to prepare for and recover from significant 

adverse events
•	 communities lead their own development and respond to challenges with innovative 

approaches.
 
Lower priority will be given to:
•	 organisations that currently receive government funding but are unable to show 

community need and benefit over and above their contracts
•	 organisations that are financially well resourced
•	 organisations that do not demonstrate wider community benefit beyond their membership 

(e.g., educational, arts, sports).
 
Meeting community needs
A range of projects and organisations were supported in the 2023/24 financial year by this 
Committee. Key challenges that exist in this predominantly rural region relate to access of 
services, adverse events and kai insecurity. 

Examples of these challenges are evident in relation to the important mahi these 
organisations are undertaking in this region. 
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Nelson Tasman Community Transport Trust was established in 2018, with the vision of 
“efficient, accessible and sustainable passenger transport services in the Nelson Tasman 
region which particularly benefit to people living in the outlying settlements.” The 
bus provides a home pick up service to assist people with mobility needs, and is at an 
affordable price, with volunteer drivers. The Trust received $24,000 in 2023 to support 
the operation – including booking of (volunteer) drivers and promoting the service. 

The Trust has been running affordable bus services between Richmond and outlying rural 
settlements of Brightwater, Wakefield, Mapua and Motueka. This rural service met and 
highlighted a need that was not being addressed by private or public bus services. Since the 
beginning of the e-bus service offered by Nelson and Tasman Councils, some of these public 
transport needs were met, and the Trust moved to provide an additional and complimentary 
service. 

Currently a community bus is operating from Tapawera, to the Richmond and Motueka. This 
extends accessibility to more rurally isolated locations and provides benefits to older people 
and those with other transport limitations to be able to access goods and services in the 
townships.

Franz Josef Community Council Incorporated was established as the lead community 
development group in Franz Josef, incorporating as a society in 1981. In 2023 they 
received a lottery community grant of $30,000 to assist with the operating costs of the 
Franz Josef Community Centre and resourcing of a number of volunteer/community-
led projects. Designated as a welfare centre, the community centre is a valued 
community-owned asset. The local economy is heavily reliant on the visitor industry 
and after a prolonged period of isolation and out-migration of families and seasonal 
workers because of pandemic restrictions, the community has since moved beyond 
survival mode and the centre continues to provide a hub of diverse all-ages activities 
that contribute to creating a thriving and connected place and supports resilience.

Crossroads Marlborough Charitable Trust provides a place of manaakitanga and belonging. 
People know they will always receive nourishment through the kai provided at no cost 
or judgement. Crossroads feed those who may be dealing with food insecurity, isolation 
and loneliness through the provision of breakfast and lunch and collaborate with other 
community organisation to provide frozen meals to their communities in need such as 
Age Concern. They also run an Urban Harvest initiative, which passes on all kai donations 
(produce) to their community. In the year 2023/24 they received $35,000 towards their 
operational costs from this Committee. The services they provide reduce loneliness and 
isolation, helps the participants to build confidence and resilience. Everyone is welcomed at 
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Crossroads, no one is turned away. They are open five days a week providing breakfast, lunch 
and every Wednesday they provide dinner. 

Committee
The Committee experienced one of the more challenging funding allocation rounds in 
2023/24 with a record number of requests, combined with a large number of applications 
that aligned well with the local priorities.

There was a positive shift in the Committee receiving a higher number of applications 
supporting kaupapa Māori initiatives, ethnic groups and more requests from rural 
communities. This increase means existing applicants are needing to consider how they align 
with the new direction of travel of lottery funding. As we move towards the implementation 
of ‘Kia Tipu, He Tipua’ , the Committee is acutely aware of the need to make some 
challenging decisions when it comes to funding, with the risk of the funding being spread too 
thinly across a large number of organisations and delivering less impact. 

The Committee appreciated the level of support from the Department of Internal Affairs 
during the year.

Latham Martin 
Presiding member 
Lottery West Coast/Nelson-Marlborough Community Committee

Lottery West Coast/Nelson-Marlborough Community Committee

2023/2024 General allocation $3,520,569

Funding returned in 2023/2024 $54,522

Total amount available for distribution in 2023/2024 $3,575,091

Total amount requested in 2023/2024 $12,458,450

Multi-year amounts approved in 2022/2023 distributed in 
2023/2024

$926,965

Total amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,648,126

Total amount distributed in 2023/2024 $3,575,091

Number of requests considered in 2023/2024 330

Number of requests approved in 2023/2024 270

Percentage of requests approved in 2023/2024 82%

Largest amount approved in 2023/2024 $75,000

Average amount approved in 2023/2024 $19,616

Smallest amount approved in 2023/2024 $2,000
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Statutory Bodies and  
Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision 
Te Tumu Whakaata Taonga New Zealand Film Commission 
The New Zealand Film Commission (NZFC) is a crown entity which helps grow and support 
our country’s vibrant film industry. It invests in original and culturally significant screen 
stories, supports talented New Zealand filmmakers to develop their careers, works to build 
connections internationally and grows audiences for New Zealand films, here and overseas. 

The NZFC markets New Zealand’s screen production industry overseas, attracts international 
screen productions to New Zealand, negotiates international co-production treaties, 
administers the New Zealand Screen Production Rebate and certifies official co-productions. 

The NZFC recognises the significant role Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board plays in 
supporting the New Zealand screen sector. In the 2023/24 financial year, the NZFC was 
allocated $21.5 million by the Board. 

In the 2023/24 period, 14 films funded for production by the NZFC had theatrical releases in 
New Zealand. Of these, nine received support from the NZFC’s distribution grants. Uproar was 
the top-grossing New Zealand film domestically, earning $896,000 at the box office. The second 
highest grossing film was The Mountain with a box office gross of $750,815.3 

New Zealand films made a strong presence on the international stage, with premiere 
screenings at renowned film festivals such as Sundance, South by Southwest, and 
International Film Festival Rotterdam. Notable highlights during the period include The Moon 
is Upside Down being awarded Best First feature at the Tallinn Black Nights Film Festival 2023 
in Estonia, and the world premiere of Never Look Away in the World Cinema Competition at the 
Sundance Film Festival in January 2024. NZFC-funded short film First Horse won the inaugural 
First Nations Award at the Sydney Film Festival 2024. In May 2024, around 60 New Zealand 
filmmakers participated in the largest edition of Cannes Marché du Film. The Producers 
International Travel Fund provided support to 10 New Zealand producers to attend this event. 

Production funding offers totalling over $11 million were made in the financial year to 14 
feature films (being either production financing offers or film finishing grants). 

Projects funded by the Te Puna Kairangi Premium Production Fund, a partnership project with 
NZ On Air and Te Māngai Pāho saw three projects go into production – Badjelly, Madam and I, 
Object. Premium Production funded projects Far North, After the Party, Dark City – The Cleaner, 
Escaping Utopia and Black Coast Vanishings premiered during the 2023/24 year. Actress Robyn 
Malcolm won Best Actress at Series Mania’s International Panorama in Lille, France for her role 
as Penny in After the Party.

3	 Box office figures as at June 30, 2024.
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89 screen practitioners were funded to participate in NZFC talent development initiatives 
and programmes and over 1,000 screen practitioners were supported to participate in 
programmes and initiatives delivered in partnership with the industry organisations. 30 
filmmakers (writers, producers and/or directors) who have previously been supported 
through NZFC Talent Development initiatives over the past five years, progressed into NZFC 
funded long-form screen story development or production this year. 

The NZFC continued to deliver Te Rautaki Māori Strategy. He Pounamu Te Reo Māori Feature 
Film Initiative is an annual fund to produce narrative feature films in te reo Māori. Ka 
Whawhai Tonu directed by Michael Jonathan, written by Tim Worrall and produced by Piripi 
Curtis and Thomas Toby Parkinson is the second film supported by this fund and released in 
cinemas on Matariki weekend.

Presently, the NZFC transactional NZ Film On Demand platform boasts a subscriber base 
of 40,112 – an increase of nearly 6,000 from the previous financial year. The platform offers 
access to a wide range of New Zealand feature and short films, including recent releases and 
digitally restored classis. 

Creative New Zealand 
Creative New Zealand is the national arts development agency of Aotearoa New Zealand. 
We encourage, promote and support the arts in New Zealand for the benefit of all New 
Zealanders. Our long-term strategic direction, Te whakaputa hua ki te hunga o Aotearoa—
Creating value for New Zealanders, sets out our vision:

Dynamic and resilient New Zealand arts, valued in Aotearoa and internationally	

Achieving our three outcomes, Greater public engagement with the arts, Stronger arts sector, 
and Stronger arts, is central to the value we create.

In 2023/24, we invested $79.3 million in the arts through our funding, capability building, 
advocacy, leadership and partnership initiatives. Of our total revenue, $49.5 million came 
from Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board, 56 percent of total revenue for the year.

Our achievements for 2023/24 include:
•	 over 311,000 participants in funded projects or events
•	 more than 3.5 million attendances reported at funded arts experiences
•	 over $34 million to organisations funded through our multi-year investment programmes, 

Tōi Tōtara Haemata and Toi Uru Kahikatea, to ensure critical arts infrastructure was 
maintained and developed. Of this funding, 15.4 percent is delivered to Māori-led 
organisations and 8.6 percent to Pacific-led organisations

•	 over $26.5 million allocated through Grants and Special Opportunities to support arts 
activities and to support artists and arts practitioners

•	 supporting the Creative Communities Scheme, run in partnership with territorial 
authorities, which awarded more than $5.1 million to projects in local communities 
throughout New Zealand

•	 over $1.1 million provided to support Te Hā o ngā Toi—Māori Arts Strategy implementation
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•	 over $2.3 million provided to support Pacific Arts Strategy implementation
•	 over $2.7 million to provide opportunities for arts organisations and individual artists and 

arts practitioners to build their skills, with the goal of developing the arts community’s 
capacity and capability to succeed

•	 more than 4,200 new New Zealand artworks supported.

Over the 2023/24 performance year, we have also:
•	 finalised Tapatahi Accessibility Policy and Action Plan 2023–2028 which guides our work 

with and for deaf and disabled artists and arts practitioners, tāngata turi, tāngata whaikaha 
Māori and disability communities, and ensures we are accessible to all New Zealanders.

•	 delivered capability resources that support the arts sector to implement the principles and 
practice guidelines of our Remuneration Policy for Artists and Arts Practitioners.

•	 supported the sector to make the case for the arts, through developing shared tools, 
evidence and research, including the launch of Fact Finder: Evidence for stronger advocacy 
and decision-making.

•	 following a review of how we deliver contestable grant funding, launched new For the 
Arts funding programmes that seek to make funding processes more accessible, easier to 
navigate and better meet the needs of artists and arts practitioners.

Inspired by our arts communities, we are committed to working together with dedication, 
heart and manaaki to meet challenges and to realise opportunities. We also thank New 
Zealanders for their continued participation, engagement, and support for the arts.

Mā whero, mā pango ka oti ai te mahi
With red and black the work will be complete

Sport New Zealand
Sport New Zealand Ihi Aotearoa (Sport NZ) promotes and supports quality experiences in 
play, active recreation and sport to improve levels of physical activity, and through this, 
contribute positively to the wellbeing of everybody in Aotearoa New Zealand. 

Through our current strategy we are focusing on improving the activity levels of tamariki 
(5–11) and rangatahi (12–18) by working closely with organisations who can make the biggest 
difference to the play, active recreation and sport system. Increasingly, Sport NZ is engaging 
with partners to reach communities where people are missing out on opportunities to be 
more physically active, particularly those living in areas of higher deprivation, as well as 
women, girls, Māori and disabled people. 

Sport NZ was allocated $66 million and Water Safety NZ $2.5 million in 2023/24 by Te Puna 
Tahua Lottery Grants Board. These important funds have supported us to invest in our 
national and regional partners to the tune of $48.7 million, and provide capability support 
over and above this. 

Together with our partners we’re able to deliver positive outcomes for tamariki and rangatahi 
in play, active recreation and sport, for example: 

https://creativenz.govt.nz/advocating-for-the-arts/fact-finder


80

•	 We’re working with national sport organisations to implement the Balance is Better 
principles to create quality experiences and keep young people participating in sport. Over 
the past year various sporting codes around Aotearoa New Zealand have implemented 
positive changes, such as adopting more informal delivery models like festival days 
or roadshows; implementing training for coaches, referees and other positions with a 
focus on understanding youth voice; offering regular development opportunities to all 
club members; and installing more equipment, such as basketball hoops, throughout 
communities and neighbourhoods. 

•	 The 16 initiatives funded through the Disability Inclusion Fund continue to progress well. 
For example, Netball NZ has started delivering accessible netball opportunities, engaging 
disabled tamariki and rangatahi who have never played before. Canoe Racing NZ is leading 
an initiative in collaboration with Blind Sport New Zealand, The Halberg Foundation, 
Parafed Auckland and selected canoe racing clubs to pilot a paddling programme with 
disabled tamariki and rangatahi. More coaches and clubs are expressing interest in the 
pilot and building their capability to engage disabled young people. 

•	 Sport NZ continues to deliver the It’s My Move campaign, which aims to close the gender 
participation gap amongst rangatahi. In 2024, the campaign centred on peer-to-peer 
messaging on social media to combat low confidence and feelings of judgement. Featuring 
prominent gen z influencers, the TikTok and Instagram content leverages current trends to 
motivate and inspire young women to embrace physical activity for fun and wellness.

•	 We’re working with our Regional Sports Trust and Local Authority partners to gather 
the perspectives of tamariki and whānau, to understand the state of play. By examining 
Neighbourhood Play Systems across the motu, we’re learning how our system should act 
to create more time, space and permission for our tamariki. Over the course of 2023/24 
our new Local Play Advocates were in-post in five of our larger councils, and they continue 
to use this intelligence to create lasting change across the spectrum of councils work. 
When our regional and local workforce combine, we are seeing a broad range of new 
programmes, projects and events, and the seeds of change to our built and physical 
environment.

•	 Our longstanding kaupapa Māori wellbeing programme, He Oranga Poutama, has 
nationwide coverage with 18 regional providers delivering to Māori communities across 
Aotearoa. The programme continues to have success in promoting traditional physical 
activities that build whanaungatanga and support pathways to whānau wellbeing.

•	 He Puna Korikori was a $1.5 million (over three years to 30 June 2024) Sport NZ contestable 
fund, administered and managed by Recreation Aotearoa. The fund was designed to 
support activities and programmes that connect rangatahi with outdoor recreation. 
The funding was split across tāngata whenua and tāngata tiriti. At least 50% of the total 
funding of each year was allocated to programmes that engage rangatahi Māori. Twenty-six 
projects were funded in 2022/23 and we’ve seen these get underway in 2023/24. Projects 
range from water safety programmes to waka ama initiatives, from transformative camps 
to the art of mau rākau. An example from last year was Waikato-based outdoor education 
provider First Step Outdoors provided young Muslim women, aged 16–26 years, a one-day 
Eid Adventure Day to experience kayaking and a high ropes course in a safe and supportive 
environment. 

•	 A new project, Active As, was set up to support regional agencies and local secondary 
schools and wharekura to provide quality active recreation and sport opportunities for 
rangatahi in their education settings. Active As funding supports schools across the motu 
to engage rangatahi in the co-design of physical activity opportunities offered in their 
schools. 
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Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision
Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision is Aotearoa New Zealand’s audiovisual archive with a collection 
spanning more than 100 years of rich history. We hold a unique position as the only dedicated 
audiovisual archive capturing the history of New Zealand, told in sound and moving image. 
There are over 800,000 items in our care, which we not only digitally preserve but also house 
in physical and digital facilities that contribute to the longevity of the collection.

Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board provides funding to Ngā Taonga Sound & Vision via 
the New Zealand Film Commission. It is one of our main funders, providing funding which 
enables us to continue our mahi to hold the nation’s audiovisual heritage in safekeeping and 
make it widely accessible. In 2023/24, Ngā Taonga received $1,700,000 in funding from the 
Board.

Our purpose is to connect taonga and people. Putting in place archival practices that 
guarantee the longevity of the items we care for and managing digital preservation of the 
original taonga is essential for us to be able to create these connections both now and in the 
future. The taonga sit at the centre of both aspects of our mahi, and we take our commitment 
as trusted stewards very seriously.

As an organisation we look for opportunities to celebrate and share the collection; 
opportunities for our audiences to create impactful connections with the taonga in our care. 
In recent years, this has included reconnecting taonga with communities involved with the 
creation of some of these items. 

Our kaimahi have travelled the country to share the iconic 1974 television documentary 
Tangata Whenua with communities featured in the series. This year, we worked with the 
Wairarapa Film Festival to screen two episodes of Tangata Whenua. For the same festival we 
preserved Vincent Ward’s earliest surviving film Ma Olsen. The screening of the film was so 
successful that an extra screening was put on for those in the community who remember the 
elderly woman featured. 

Other community engagement has seen us present items local to Kaikoura, from our 
collection, with Ngāti Kuri at Takahanga Marae alongside Kāhui Kaitiaki, a network of Māori 
working for galleries and museums. Similarly, we shared taonga from the Ōtaki region with 
the Ōtaki Kaumātua Group.

Each year we reach out to arts and culture organisations throughout the country to 
support national celebrations such as Matariki and Waitangi Day. In 2023/24 we created an 
audiovisual compilation of Waitangi Treaty Ground archival footage called From Pageant 
to Hīkoi which we shared with 28 museums and libraries around the motu from Kaikohe to 
Dunedin. From Pageant to Hīkoi achieved significant engagement online via our social media 
channels, further extending our reach into communities.

Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board funding also allowed us to extend support for our 
Rokirokitia project, which had originally been established through the Te Awe Kōtuku fund. 
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We compiled portable digitisation kits, which we delivered to iwi and other Māori groups 
along with training and advice to help communities digitally preserve their at-risk audiovisual 
collections on magnetic media. Across the span of the Rokirokitia project we delivered more 
than 50 digitisation kits.

Te Pūranga is another forum where we have been actively working with iwi to share our 
preservation knowledge. Now in its second year, Te Pūranga is a collaboration between 
Ngā Taonga and other culture and heritage agencies which brings together iwi archivists to 
support the development of archiving skills in Māori communities. The wānanga (seminars/
workshops) provide vital hands-on training in collection care and management for iwi 
archivists to enhance the care and preservation of their taonga outside the physical confines 
of heritage institutions. This year’s wānanga were enthusiastically received, with registrations 
at capacity.

As an organisation, our kaupapa expresses our commitment to the principles of the Treaty 
of Waitangi and reflects both Māori and Pākehā perspectives and aspirations. We continue 
to work closely with iwi and Māori across the sector and in local and regional communities 
to create connections between the people and their taonga. In practical terms, one of the 
services we provide is the compilation of bespoke inventories of taonga for iwi and other 
groups, to increase knowledge and awareness of the collections we hold, facilitate access to 
copies and enhance our kaitiaki relationships.

We have also welcomed visitors in person at our Pipitea site. Our Pou Ārahi and Mātauranga 
Māori team hosted and shared the collection with the Waitangi Treaty Grounds leadership 
team, Ngāti Tūwharetoa Trust Board, Korohe Marae Kahui Kaumatua, Te Araroa Kaumātua 
Heritage Hikoi, Opotiki Mai Tawhiti kapa haka, research teams from Te Korowai o Wainuiarua, 
Ngāti Porou Taiao and Ōmahu Marae, to name but a few. 

Finally, over the past year, we have worked to reach Pasifika communities in Aotearoa by 
collaborating with the Pacific Virtual Museum, a shared online space that enables Pacific 
peoples to connect with their cultural heritage from around the world. 

Ngā Taonga produced a compilation of archival films of the Cook Islands, which was screened 
at the National Library of New Zealand to a highly engaged audience from the Wellington 
Cook Islands community. The event gave community members an opportunity to reminisce 
and learn about Cook Islands history. We also screened this programme to communities in 
Porirua and Rarotonga. 

We also worked with the Samoan community to produce a compilation for Vaiaso o le 
Gagana Samoa – Samoa Language Week. A public screening of this was also held at the 
National Library of New Zealand. 

Ngā Taonga gratefully acknowledges the huge role that Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board 
plays in enabling us to continue to preserve and share the audiovisual taonga of Aotearoa 
New Zealand. 
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Te Puna Tahua New Zealand Lottery Grants Board for the year ended 30 June 2024

Independent auditor’s report

To the readers of New Zealand Lottery Grants Board’s financial statements 
information for the year ended 30 June 2024.

The Auditor-General is the auditor of New Zealand Lottery Grants Board. The Auditor-
General has appointed me, Henry McClintock, using the staff and resources of BDO 
Wellington Audit Limited, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the New 
Zealand Lottery Grants Board on his behalf. 

Opinion
We have audited:
•	 the financial statements of the New Zealand Lottery Grants Board on pages 90 to 100 

that comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the statement 
of comprehensive revenue and expenses and statement of changes in equity for 
the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements that include a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

In our opinion:
•	 the financial statements of the New Zealand Lottery Grants Board on pages 90 to 

100:
•	 present fairly, in all material respects:

•	 its financial position as at 30 June 2024; and
•	 its financial performance for the year then ended; and

•	 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance 
with Public Benefit Entity Standards.

Our audit was completed on 9 October 2024. This is the date at which our opinion is 
expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities 
of the Board and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we comment 
on other information, and explain our independence.

Basis for our opinion
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International 
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report. 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing 
Standards.
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Financial Statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial statements 
The Board is responsible on behalf of the New Zealand Lottery Grants Board for 
preparing financial statements that are fairly presented and comply with generally 
accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The Board is responsible for such 
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable them to prepare financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsible on behalf of the New 
Zealand Lottery Grants Board for assessing the New Zealand Lottery Grants Board’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. The Board is also responsible for disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting, unless there is an intention to merge or to terminate the activities of the 
New Zealand Lottery Grants Board, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board’s responsibilities arise from the Crown Entities Act 2004 and the Public 
Finance Act 1989. 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit carried out in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements are differences or 
omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the decisions of readers, taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were 
limited to checking that the information agreed to the New Zealand Lottery Grants 
Board’s statement of performance expectations.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. Also:

•	 We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
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those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Zealand Lottery 
Grants Board’s internal control.

•	 We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board.

•	 We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of 
accounting by the Board and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the New Zealand Lottery Grants Board’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the New Zealand Lottery Grants 
Board to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001.

Other information
The Board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included on pages 1 to 82, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independence
We are independent of the New Zealand Lottery Grants Board in accordance with 
the independence requirements of the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical Standard 1: 
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.  

Other than in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interests, in the 
New Zealand Lottery Grants Board.

Henry McClintock 
BDO WELLINGTON AUDIT LIMITED
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand
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Statement of responsibility
New Zealand Lottery Grants Board (the Board) is responsible for the preparation of the 
Board’s financial statements and for the judgements made in them.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal 
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 
financial reporting.

In the Board’s opinion, these financial statements fairly reflect the financial position 
and operations of the Board for the year ended 30 June 2024.

Signed on behalf of the Board:

Hon Brooke van Velden				    Colleen Tuuta
Presiding Board Member				    Board Member

9 October 2024					     9 October 2024
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Statement of purpose
The Board makes decisions on the allocation of profits arising from New Zealand 
Lotteries. These decisions are limited to the allocations to the lottery distribution 
committees, the Minister of Internal Affairs (Discretionary Fund) and the three statutory 
bodies in accordance with Sections 276, 278 and 279 of the Gambling Act 2003 and are 
detailed in Note 4 of the financial statements for Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. The 
three statutory bodies named in Section 279 of the Gambling Act 2003 are Creative 
New Zealand, Sport New Zealand, and the New Zealand Film Commission.

These financial statements comprise the accounts of the Board.

The operations of the lottery distribution committees and the Minister’s Discretionary 
Fund are reported in the financial statements of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. 

The operations of the statutory bodies are reported in the annual accounts of those 
entities.
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Statement of comprehensive  
revenue and expense  
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note

Actual
2024

$

Budget
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Revenue

Lottery profits 2 433,945,388 327,952,000 376,070,001

Total revenue   433,945,388 327,952,000 376,070,001

Expenditure

Distribution to Profits of New Zealand 
Lotteries

433,866,894 327,807,140 375,915,902

Board expenses 4 38,907 85,268 64,775

Presiding members’ policy advisory 
group meetings expenses

4 39,587 59,592 89,324

Total expenditure   433,945,388 327,952,000 376,070,001

Operating surplus/(deficit)   - - -

Other comprehensive revenue and 
expense

Total other comprehensive revenue and 
expense   - - -

Total comprehensive revenue and 
expense - - -

Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year ended 30 June 2024 was $nil 
(2022/23: $nil). The Board expenses were paid from a bank account operated by the 
Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. All surpluses are distributed to the Profits of New 
Zealand Lotteries.

Therefore, it is not appropriate for the Board to produce a statement of changes in net 
assets/equity or statement of cash flows.

Explanations of significant variances against budget are provided in Note 7.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction 
with, these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position  
as at 30 June 2024

  Note

Actual
2024

$

Budget
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Assets

Current assets

Debtors and other receivables 5 92,293,388 - 9,825,000

Total current assets   92,293,388 - 9,825,000

Total assets  92,293,388 - 9,825,000

Liabilities 

Current liabilities

Distribution payable to Profits of 
New Zealand Lotteries 6 92,293,388 - 9,825,000

Total current liabilities  92,293,388 - 9,825,000

Total liabilities   92,293,388 - 9,825,000

Net assets - - -

Equity

Accumulated funds - - -

Total equity   - - -

Explanations of significant variances against budget are detailed in Note 7. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction 
with, these financial statements.
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Statement of commitments  
as at 30 June 2024

The Board has no commitments as at 30 June 2024 (2023: $nil).

Statement of contingent assets and liabilities  
as at 30 June 2024

The Board has no contingent assets or contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2024  
(2023: $nil).

Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Statement of accounting policies

Reporting entity
Te Puna Tahua New Zealand Lottery Grants Board (Board) is a fourth schedule entity in 
terms of the Public Finance Act 1989. These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Public Finance Act 1989 and the Crown Entities Act 2004. For the 
purposes of financial reporting the Board is a public benefit entity (PBE).
	
The Board’s primary objective is to make decisions on the allocation of profits received 
from the New Zealand Lotteries Commission (Lotto NZ). The operations of the lottery 
distribution committees and the Minister’s Discretionary Fund are reported in the 
financial statements of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. The operations of the 
statutory bodies are reported in the annual accounts of those entities.
	
The Secretary for Internal Affairs is trustee of the profits received from Lotto NZ under 
the Gambling Act 2003. 

Reporting period
The financial statements for the Board are for the year ended 30 June 2024 and were 
approved by the Board on 9 October 2024.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the year.
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Statement of compliance 
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Crown Entities Act 2004, which include the requirement to comply 
with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP).

The Board is a Tier 1 entity and the financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with public benefit entity (PBE) Standards. These statements comply with 
PBE Standards.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Public Finance 
Act 1989, Crown Entities Act 2004 and the Gambling Act 2003.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies 
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
In preparing these financial statements, the Board has made estimates and 
assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions might differ 
from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Board has not made any 
judgements or applied estimates of future events. There are no judgements and 
estimates, except for the judgement regarding going concern disclosed below, which 
are material to the financial report (2022/23 $nil).

Going concern 
A judgement that is material to the financial report is that Lotto NZ will continue its 
operations in the foreseeable future. The Board relies on Lotto NZ for its funding and 
so the Board has adequate resources to continue operations for the length of time that 
Lotto NZ operates. 

Budget figures
The budget figures for the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense and the 
statement of financial position are those approved by the Minister of Internal Affairs, as 
Presiding Board Member of the Board, at the beginning of the financial year.

The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand generally 
accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP) and are consistent with the accounting 
policies adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements.
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Presentation currency and rounding
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars which is the Board’s 
functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar.

Measurement base
The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis.

Revenue 
Revenue comprises the profits of Lotto NZ. Revenue is measured at fair value which has been 
determined to be equivalent to the amounts received or receivable. 
 
All revenue is deemed to be non-exchange revenue as per the definition in PBE IPSAS 23, 
“Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions”.

Board expenses
Board expenses are the costs of the Board including members’ fees and travel costs, meeting 
venue hire and sundry expenses. 

Goods and services tax (GST)
These accounts have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis, except for accounts receivable 
and payable. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as part of the related 
expense. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the IRD is presented as a 
net receivables or payables figure in the statement of financial position.

Income tax
The Board is a public authority and consequently is exempt from the payment of income tax. 
Accordingly, no provision has been made for income tax.

Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies during the financial year (2022/23: PBE 
IPSAS 41 became effective for the year ending 30 June 2023).

Standards issued and adopted 
There were no standards and amendments issued 2023/24 which are relevant to the Board. 

2024/2025: PBE IPSAS 1 Disclosure of Fees for Audit Firms' Services  
(Amendments to PBE IPSAS 1) 
This amendment is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. For the Board, 
this standard applies to the upcoming financial year. Entities are required to disclose the fees 
incurred for services received from its audit or review firm, and a description of each service. 
IPSAS 1 is expected to have no significant effect on the Board's financial statements. 
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Note 2: Distribution to Profits of New Zealand Lotteries
Revenue less Board expenditure is distributed to the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. It is 
recognised as expenditure in the financial statements of the Board and as revenue in the 
financial statements of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries as per the Gambling Act 2003 - 
part 3, subpart 3, paragraph 290. 

The 2023/24 distribution to the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries was funded by profits of 
$433,945,388 (2022/23: $376,070,001) received from Lotto NZ during the year.

At its meeting on 29 June 2023, the Board approved specific allocations to the distribution 
committees, the Minister of Internal Affairs (discretionary fund), and the three statutory 
bodies as detailed in Note 4 of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries’ financial statements. 

Note 3: Related parties and key management personnel
The Board enters transactions with other entities on an arm’s length basis. Transactions that 
occur are within a normal supplier or client relationship on terms and conditions no more or 
less favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect the Board would have adopted if 
dealing with those unrelated entities at arm’s length.

The Department of Internal Affairs provides administrative services to the Board, the 
distribution committees, and the Minister of Internal Affairs on an arm’s length basis.

The key management personnel are the six members of the Board (2022/23: 6).

There were no grants approved relating to key management personnel during the year ended 
30 June 2024 (2022/23: $nil). Therefore, there was no exercise of control or influence in the 
approval process.

Note 4: Disclosure of fees
Of the six key management personnel, three are members of parliament. The first is Hon 
Brooke van Velden, Minister of Internal Affairs, who replaces Hon Barbara Edmonds, the 
previous Minister of Internal Affairs. The Prime Minister’s representative is Hon Louise Upston, 
appointed by the Rt Hon Christopher Luxon. The Leader of the Opposition’s representative is 
Lemauga Lydia Sosene, appointed by the Rt Hon Christopher Hipkins. 

The previous representatives for the Prime Minister and the Leader of the Opposition were Mr 
Simon O’Connor and Hon Priyanca Radhakrishnan, respectively.

Members of Parliament do not receive remuneration or other benefits for their roles as 
members of the Board.

The total fees paid to the non-Member of Parliament Board members for attendance at 
Board, presiding members’ policy advisory group and distribution committee meetings 
during the year ended 30 June 2024 are shown below. These equate to 0.23 full-time 
equivalent (2022/23: 0.28):
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Lottery Grants Board Members’ Fees
 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Coutts, K. 8,655 - 

Govind, S. 9,920 12,837 

Grant, A. 1,362 13,031 

Nguyen, K.T. - 1,751 

Tuuta, C. 7,401 13,732 

Total fees paid 27,338 41,351

Meeting travel expenses 11,569 23,424

Total Lottery Grants Board Members’ 
expenses 38,907 64,775

These fees are based on actual paid fees in the year to 30 June 2024. Any fees processed after 
the year-end will appear in the 2024/25 annual report.

Fees for attendance at the Presiding 
members’ policy advisory group 
meetings

Actual 
2024

$

Actual 
2023

$
Algar, H. 313 348 
Baker, P.V. 313 348 
Bannerman, Y. - 348 
Bigham, B. 313 -
Cairns, B. - 348 
Candy, A. - 348 
Clarricoats, G. - 1,095 
Correa, R. 783 513 
Cotton, E. 469 348 
Crawford, E. - 348 
Daw, J.M. - 348 
Dhiru, V. - 348 
Firestone, R. - 626 
Fletcher, E. - 470 
Fox, N. - 348 
Fyfe, D. - 348 
Gemmell, S.E.B. - 348 
Gestro-Best, C. - 348 
Gould-Lardelli, R. 783 1,095 
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Fees for attendance at the Presiding 
members’ policy advisory group 
meetings

Actual 
2024

$

Actual 
2023

$
Gritt, J. - 348 
Hebberd, C. - 348 
Hewitt, R. 783 -
Holmes,P. - 348 
Houkamau, R. 313 348 
Howarth, J.R. - 348 
Ivory, D. - 348 
Kapa, R. - 348 
Kaye-Simmons, V.M. 783 348 
Kumar, M. - 1,095 
Lanigan-Behrent, T. - 348 
Latham, J.M. 783 1,095 
Leung, R. - 348 
Lockwood, S.G. 469 -
Lovell, E. - 470 
Lu, B. 827 -
McCartney, N. - 348 
Menzies-Culling, S. - 348 
Morrison, G. 313 470 
O’Connell, J. 783 1,095 
Paewai, S.D. - 1,095 
Paitai, T. - 348 
Pamatatau, R. 469 470 
Patten-Matehaere, S. - 348 
Pishief, E. - 348 
Powley, Y.S. - 348 
Ridden, J. - 348 
Robin, T. 469 -
Rossiter-Stead, C. - 348 
Ryu, G. - 348 
Sadlier, L. - 348 
Shaw, V.F. - 626 
Stevens, K. 783 464 
Tait, H. - 348 
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Fees for attendance at the Presiding 
members’ policy advisory group 
meetings

Actual 
2024

$

Actual 
2023

$
Tana, R. 469 348 
Taufale, T.T.S. - 348 
Taylor, N. 313 -
Tepania-Palmer, G. - 470 
Van Uden, V. 782 1,095 
von Dadelszen, E.H. - 348 
Wadia, F. 782 1,095 
Walford-Smith, L. - 348 
Wood, J. - 348 
Worden, J. - 1,096 
Wraight, B. - 348 
Wright-Tawhā, T. - 348 
Xiao, S.X. - 348 
Total fees paid 12,095 29,051

Meetings travel expenses 27,492 60,273
Total Presiding members’ policy 
advisory group meetings expenses 39,587 89,324

These fees are based on actual paid fees in the 2023/24 financial year. Any fees processed 
after the year-end will appear in the 2024/25 annual report. 
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Note 5: Receivables

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Accounts receivable, lottery profits 92,293,388 9,825,000

Allowance for doubtful debts - -

Total receivables 92,293,388 9,825,000

Accounts receivable is a final profits payment due from Lotto NZ (2023 also included a final 
budgeted distributions payment) and is recorded at face value. The Board has applied 
the simplified expected credit loss model recognising an allowance for doubtful debts on 
receivables.

The ageing profile of receivables at year end is detailed below:

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Not past due 92,293,388 5,000,000

Past due 1-30 days - 4,835,000

Past due 31-60 days - -

Past due 61-90 days - -

Past due over 90 days - -

Total receivables 92,293,388 9,835,000

All receivables more than 30 days in age are past due. 

Note 6: Distribution payable to Profits of New Zealand Lotteries
This balance reflects the amount to be received from Lotto NZ and passed on to the Profits of 
New Zealand Lotteries for redistribution.
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Note 7: Explanation of significant variances against budget 
Explanations of significant variances between actual and budget figures for the year ending 
30 June 2024 are as follows:

Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
Lottery profits
Revenue budgets were based on Lotto NZ forecast profits at the start of 2023/24. Lotto NZ 
profits were significantly higher than the budget due to a $30 million Powerball jackpot in 
April 2024 and followed by a $50 million must-be-won Powerball jackpot in June 2024. The 
increased profits have been passed from Lotto NZ to the Board.

Distribution to Profits of New Zealand Lotteries
Distribution budgets were based on Lotto NZ forecast at the start of 2023/24. Lotto NZ profits 
were higher than the budget and the increased profits have been passed from Lotto NZ to the 
Board and on to Profits of New Zealand Lotteries.

Board member fees
Board member fees are budgeted on 100% of allowable fees being claimed in the financial 
year. This has not transpired in the year to 30 June 2024 due to liaison member leave, 
scheduling conflicts, and a brief delay between the terms of two members.

Fees for Presiding Members’ Policy Advisory Group meetings
Fees for Presiding members’ policy advisory group meetings are budgeted on 100% of 
allowable fees being claimed for two meetings during the year. In the 2022/23 year, one 
full-day and one half-day Presiding members’ policy advisory group meetings were held 
during the year. Additionally, one large hui for all distribution committee members was held. 
The purpose of the committee members hui was hāpaitia te are whanaungatanga – to build 
connections across, and capability of the distribution committees.

Statement of financial position
Debtors and other receivables
The 2023/24 final profits payment from Lotto NZ was received 30 August 2024. This payment 
of $92.3 million was not budgeted.

Note 8: Events after reporting date
There were no significant events that have occurred between 30 June 2024 and signing these 
financial statements (2022/23: $nil).
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Independent auditor’s report
To the readers of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries financial statements 
information for the year ended 30 June 2024.

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. The Auditor-
General has appointed me, Henry McClintock, using the staff and resources of BDO 
Wellington Audit Limited, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the 
Profits of New Zealand Lotteries on his behalf. 

Opinion
We have audited:

•	 the financial statements of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries on pages 107 to 131 that 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the statement 
of comprehensive revenue and expenses, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial 
statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information; and

In our opinion:
•	 the financial statements of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries on pages 107 to 131:

•	 present fairly, in all material respects:
•	 its financial position as at 30 June 2024; and
•	 its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and

•	 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance 
with Public Benefit Entity Standards.

Our audit was completed on 9 October 2024. This is the date at which our opinion is 
expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities 
of the Secretary for Internal Affairs and our responsibilities relating to the financial 
statements, we comment on other information, and explain our independence.

Basis for our opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International 
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report. 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing 
Standards. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Secretary for Internal 
Affairs for the financial statements 
The Secretary for Internal Affairs is responsible on behalf of Profits of New Zealand 
Lotteries for preparing financial statements that are fairly presented and comply with 
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The Secretary for Internal 
Affairs is responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable 
them to prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Secretary for Internal Affairs is responsible 
on behalf of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries for assessing Profits of New Zealand 
Lotteries’ ability to continue as a going concern. The Secretary for Internal Affairs is 
also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting, unless there is an intention to merge or 
to terminate the activities of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries, or there is no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The Secretary for Internal Affair’s responsibilities arise from the Gambling Act 2003. 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit carried out in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements are differences or 
omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the decisions of readers, taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were 
limited to checking that the information agreed to Profits of New Zealand Lotteries’ 
statement of performance expectations.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. Also:
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•	 We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Profits of New Zealand 
Lotteries’ internal control.

•	 We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 
Secretary for Internal Affairs.

•	 We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of 
accounting by the Secretary for Internal Affairs and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on Profits of New Zealand Lotteries’ ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause Profits of New Zealand 
Lotteries to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with the Secretary for Internal Affairs regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001.

Other information
The Board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included on pages 1 to 82, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independence
We are independent of Profits of New Zealand Lotteries in accordance with the 
independence requirements of the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical Standard 1: 
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.  

Other than in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interests, in 
Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. 

Henry McClintock 
BDO WELLINGTON AUDIT LIMITED
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand
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Statement of responsibility
The Secretary for Internal Affairs is responsible for the preparation of the Profits of New 
Zealand Lotteries financial statements and for the judgements made in them.

The Secretary for Internal Affairs has the responsibility for establishing and 
maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance as 
to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.

In the Secretary for Internal Affairs’ opinion, these financial statements fairly reflect the 
financial position and operations of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries for the year 
ended 30 June 2024.
 

Paul James Clare Toufexis
Secretary for Internal Affairs Secretary of the Board
9 October 2024 9 October 2024
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Statement of comprehensive  
revenue and expense  
for the year ended 30 June 2024

  Note

Actual
2024

$

Budget
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Revenue

Distribution from New Zealand 
Lottery Grants Board

433,866,894 327,807,140 375,915,902

Interest revenue 2 6,714,620 5,000,000 5,473,056

Other revenue 3 1,742,563 - 809,742

Total revenue   442,324,077 332,807,140 382,198,700

Expenditure

Administration expense 15,237,827 15,212,104 13,063,770

Audit fee 60,311 60,000 56,611

Other expenses 3,168 8,000 3,060

Distribution committee expenses 11 116,171 224,299 125,887

Grants expenses 12 323,866,746 313,723,131 406,682,756

Total expenditure   339,284,223 329,227,534 419,932,084

Operating surplus/(deficit)   103,039,854 3,579,606 (37,733,384)

Other comprehensive revenue 
and expense

Total other comprehensive 
revenue and expense   - - -

Total comprehensive revenue 
and expense   103,039,854 3,579,606 (37,733,384)

Explanations of significant variances against budget are provided in Note 13.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction 
with, these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position  
as at 30 June 2024

  Note

Actual
2024

$

Budget
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 85,792,797 100,504,000 120,886,764

Short-term investments 5 90,677,881 100,200,000 50,538,053

GST receivable 2,280,584 1,314,000 2,066,352

Debtors and other receivables 6 92,296,937 - 9,854,272

Accrued interest 12,927 - 18,210

Total current assets   271,061,126 202,018,000 183,363,651

Total assets   271,061,126 202,018,000 183,363,651

Liabilities 

Current liabilities

Grants payable 7 45,713,477 124,675,000 61,060,287

Creditors and other payables 8 62,962 30,000 58,531

Total current liabilities   45,776,439 124,705,000 61,118,818

Total liabilities 5 45,776,439 124,705,000 61,118,818

Net assets	 225,284,687 77,313,000 122,244,833

Equity

Accumulated funds 225,284,687 77,313,000 122,244,833

Total equity   225,284,687 77,313,000 122,244,833

Explanations of significant variances against budget are provided in Note 13.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction 
with, these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity  
for the year ended 30 June 2024

  Note

Actual
2024

$

Budget
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Movement in equity for the 
year ended 30 June 2024        

Equity as at 1 July 2023 122,244,833 73,733,394 159,978,217

Total comprehensive revenue  
and expense for the year ended  
30 June 2024	 103,039,854 3,579,606 (37,733,384)

Equity as at 30 June 2024 225,284,687 77,313,000 122,244,833
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Breakdown of equity and further information
 

  Note

Actual
2024

$

Budget
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Undistributed committees' funds        

Granting commitments* 35,080,476  -  40,149,728 

Undistributed committees' funds 
carried forward to 2025 3,276,701 -  1,987,573 

Total undistributed committees’ 
funds as at 30 June 2024 38,357,177 - 42,137,301

Accumulated funds

Accumulated funds as at 1 July 2023 80,107,532 73,733,394 96,294,438

Total comprehensive revenue  
and expense 103,039,854 3,579,606 (37,733,384)

Funds allocated for the year 4 (324,421,631) (352,143,682) (387,140,933)

Grants approved by the committees 12 323,866,746 352,143,682 406,682,756

Funds returned to accumulated 
funds from committees (554,885) - 19,541,823

Funds allocated to distribution 
committees but unspent 4,335,009 - 2,004,655

Accumulated funds as at  
30 June 2024 186,927,510 77,313,000 80,107,532

Equity as at 30 June 2024 225,284,687 77,313,000 122,244,833

Undistributed committee funds
These are funds that are undistributed at the end of the financial year and are either 
committed or have been approved for the committee to carry forward distribution in future 
years.
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Accumulated funds
These are funds available to the Board to meet planned allocations to distribution 
committees.

* For discretionary grants with substantive conditions, the funding committed when 
approved by the distribution committees is shown in the statement of commitments. 
Discretionary grants with substantive conditions are expensed (distributed) at the 
earlier of the grant payment date or when the grant conditions have been satisfied 
at which time they are recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and 
expenditure.



112

Profits of New Zealand Lotteries for the year ended 30 June 2024

Statement of cash flows  
for the year ended 30 June 2024

  Note

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Cash flows from operating activities

Lottery profits 351,477,000 375,429,916

Interest received 6,580,076 5,299,101

Other revenue 1,742,563 809,742

Grants paid (339,213,556) (408,399,970)

Suppliers (15,465,818) (13,283,513)

GST (net) (214,232) 825,533

Net cash flow from operating activities 9 4,906,033 (39,319,191)

Cash flows from Investing Activities

Maturity of investments 107,000,000 145,000,000

Purchase of investments (147,000,000) (120,000,000)

Net cash flow from investing activities   (40,000,000) 25,000,000

Movement in cash

Opening cash and cash equivalents 120,886,764 135,205,955

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

(35,093,967) (14,319,191)

Closing cash and cash equivalents  5 85,792,797 120,886,764

The notes form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these 
financial statements.
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Statement of commitments  
as at 30 June 2024

   

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Granting commitments

Less than one year 19,685,267 14,353,591

One to two years 15,395,209 25,756,426

Two to five years - 39,711

Over five years   - -

Total granting commitments 35,080,476 40,149,728

Multi-year granting commitments  
less than one year - 20,962,880

Total commitments   35,080,476 61,112,608

Grants with conditions are recognised as expenditure at the earlier of grant payment 
date or when the grant conditions have been satisfied. 

Until this time, the value of the commitments will show in the statement of 
commitments in the financial statements of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries.

Multi-year funding was not available for the 2023/24 year (2022/23 multi-year grant 
investments for up to two years were available).

Multi-year grants are subject to future funding hence not deemed to be undistributed 
funds.

Statement of contingent assets and liabilities  
as at 30 June 2024

There are no contingent assets or contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2024 (2022/23: 
$nil).
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Notes to the financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Statement of accounting policies
Reporting entity
Under the provisions of the Gambling Act 2003, the Secretary for Internal Affairs is 
responsible for keeping the accounts of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries.
	
The operations of the Lottery distribution committees are reported in the financial 
statements of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. The Te Puna Tahua New Zealand 
Lottery Grants Board’s (Board) primary objective is to make decisions on the allocation 
of profits received from the New Zealand Lotteries Commission (Lotto NZ).
	
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Gambling Act 
2003. For the purposes of financial reporting, the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries is a 
public benefit entity (PBE).

Reporting period
The financial statements for the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries are for the year ended 
30 June 2024 and were approved by the Secretary for Internal Affairs on 9 October 
2024.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the year.

Statement of compliance 
The financial statements of the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries have been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the Gambling Act 2003, which includes the 
requirement to comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand 
(NZ GAAP).

The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries is a Tier 1 entity and the financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with PBE Standards. These statements comply with the 
PBE Standards.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Public Finance 
Act 1989, Crown Entities Act 2004 and the Gambling Act 2003.
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Note 1: Significant accounting policies 
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
In preparing these financial statements, the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries has made 
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions 
might differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries 
has not made any judgements or applied estimates of future events. There are no 
judgements and estimates, except for the judgement regarding going concern and 
grant expenditure accounting policy which are disclosed below, which are material to 
the financial report (2022/23 $nil).

Going concern 
A judgement that is material to the financial report is that Lotto NZ will continue its 
operations in the foreseeable future. The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries receives its 
revenue from the Board who relies on Lotto NZ for its funding, and so the Profits of 
New Zealand Lotteries has adequate resources to continue operations for the length of 
time that Lotto NZ operates. 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries has exercised judgement in developing its grant 
expenses accounting policy as there is no specific accounting standard for grant 
expenses. 

Further information about the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries grants is disclosed in 
Note 4. 

Budget figures
The budget figures for the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense and the 
statement of financial position are those approved by the Minister of Internal Affairs, as 
Presiding Member of the Board, at the beginning of the financial year.

The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand generally 
accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP) and are consistent with the accounting 
policies adopted by the Secretary for Internal Affairs in preparing these financial 
statements.

Presentation currency and rounding
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars which is Profits of New 
Zealand Lotteries’ functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar.



116

Profits of New Zealand Lotteries for the year ended 30 June 2024

Measurement base
The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis.

Revenue 
Revenue comprises the profits of Lotto NZ, received by the Board, and distributed to 
the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries after deducting Board expenses. Revenue also 
includes interest revenue on investments and other miscellaneous revenue. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value which has been determined to be equivalent to the amounts 
received or receivable. 

Revenue from the Board is recognised when advised by Lotto NZ. Investment revenue 
is recognised on an accrual basis when earned and is reported in the financial period to 
which it relates. 

Interest received is deemed to be exchange revenue; all other revenue is deemed to be 
non-exchange revenue (as per the definition in PBE IPSAS 23).

If a grant is refunded, either in part or in full, where the original payment was made 
in the same financial year the refund will be netted off against the relevant grant 
expenditure in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense. If a refunded 
grant relates to a grant payment made in a previous financial year the refund will be 
treated as other revenue in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value (including 
any associated transaction costs) and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
Financial assets are also measured net of an impairment allowance. Any profit or 
loss from the financial transaction is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
revenue and expense.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks and 
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less. The carrying value of these assets approximates their fair value.

While cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2024 are subject to 
the expected credit loss requirements of PBE IPSAS 41, no loss allowance has been 
recognised because the estimated loss allowance for credit losses is trivial.

Payables
Payables have been designated as grants payable and other payables. They are 
recorded at the amount payable.

Debtors and other receivables
Debtors and other receivables are recorded at the amount due, less an allowance for 
expected credit losses. 
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Debtors and other receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation 
of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include the 
debtor being in liquidation. 

Investments
Profits of New Zealand Lotteries considers there has not been a significant increase 
in credit risk for investments in term deposits because the issuer of the investment 
continues to have low credit risk at reporting date. Term deposits are held with banks 
that have a short-term investment grade credit rating of not less than ‘A-1’ from 
Standard and Poor’s, ‘F1’ from Fitch Ratings, or ‘P-1’ from Moody’s Investor Service, 
which indicates the bank has a very strong capacity to meet its financial commitments. 

The carrying amounts of term deposits with maturities of 12 months or less 
approximate their fair value.

Goods and services tax (GST)
These accounts have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis, except for accounts 
receivable and payable. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as 
part of the related expense. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 
the IRD is presented as a net receivables or payables figure in the statement of financial 
position.

Income tax
Profits of New Zealand Lotteries is a public authority and consequently is exempt from 
the payment of income tax. Accordingly, no provision has been made for income tax.

Grant expenditure
The net grants are discretionary and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
revenue and expense as expenditure when they have been:
•	 approved by the distribution committees, and 
•	 applicant is advised, and
•	 any outcome reporting has been received and accepted, or 
•	 payment has been made.

For discretionary grants without substantive conditions, the total committed funding 
over the life of the grant is expensed when the grant is approved by the distribution 
committee. Discretionary grants with substantive conditions are expensed at the 
earlier of the grant payment date or when the grant conditions have been satisfied.
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Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies during the financial year (2022/23: 
PBE IPSAS 41 became effective for the year ending 30 June 2023).

Standards issued and adopted 2023/24
There were no standards and amendments issued 2023/24 which are relevant to the 
Board. 

2024/2025: PBE IPSAS 1 Disclosure of Fees for Audit 
Firms' Services (Amendments to PBE IPSAS 1)
This amendment is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. For 
the Board, this standard applies to the upcoming financial year. Entities are required 
to disclose the fees incurred for services received from its audit or review firm, and 
a description of each service. IPSAS 1 is expected to have no significant effect on the 
Board's financial statements.

Note 2: Interest revenue: exchange

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Bank of New Zealand current account 3,029,835 2,335,672 

Money market investment 3,682,490 3,136,567 

Other interest 2,295 817

Total interest revenue 6,714,620 5,473,056

Note 3: Other revenue

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Grant refunds - prior financial years 1,742,563 809,742

Total other revenue 1,742,563 809,742
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Note 4: Fund allocations
The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries distributes funds by way of distribution 
committees, the Minister of Internal Affairs (discretionary fund), and the three statutory 
bodies. The funding allocation to these committees, the Minister of Internal Affairs and 
the statutory bodies is set out below:

 
 
 

Actual
2024

%*

Actual
2023

%*

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Distribution committees        

         

Community committee        

National 3.50% 5.50% 11,425,634 21,161,205 

 

Regional community committees

Northland 1.80% 1.20% 5,856,885 4,748,966 

Auckland 7.60% 6.40% 24,571,513 24,737,054 

Waikato 3.00% 2.50% 9,701,012 9,766,370 

Bay of Plenty/Gisborne 2.90% 1.90% 9,428,297 7,197,060 

Taranaki 0.80% 0.70% 2,560,635 2,577,887 

Hawke's Bay 1.70% 0.80% 5,465,929 3,207,997 

Manawatu/Whanganui 1.60% 1.30% 5,073,892 5,108,075 

Wellington/Wairarapa 2.20% 1.80% 7,011,688 7,058,926 

West Coast/Nelson-Marlborough 1.10% 0.90% 3,520,569 3,544,287 

Canterbury/Kaikoura 2.80% 2.40% 9,042,990 9,103,914 

Otago/Southland 1.80% 1.50% 5,725,961 5,764,537 

 

National committees

Community facilities 4.50% 7.00% 14,524,199 26,900,000 

Community sector research 0.00% 0.10% - 500,000 

Environment and heritage 2.30% 3.60% 7,506,741 13,903,095 

Health research 0.70% 1.10% 2,238,781 4,146,404 

Individuals with disabilities 3.20% 2.70% 10,295,975 10,295,975 

Oranga Marae 10.80% 9.10% 35,000,000 35,000,000 

Outdoor safety 2.60% 2.20% 8,293,616 8,293,616 
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Actual
2024

%*

Actual
2023

%*

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Minister's discretionary fund

Minister's discretionary fund** 0.30% 4.82% 1,000,000 18,642,251 

Emergency natural disaster response 
fund

1.50% 2.58% 5,000,000 10,000,000 

Distribution to statutory bodies

Creative New Zealand 15.30% 14.00% 49,500,000 54,645,000 

Sport New Zealand 20.30% 18.70% 66,000,000 72,860,000 

New Zealand Film Commission 6.60% 6.10% 21,500,000 23,679,500 

 

Other allocations to statutory 
bodies***

New Zealand Film Commission - Ngā 
Taonga Sound and Vision

0.50% 0.50% 1,700,000 1,821,500

Sport New Zealand - water safety 0.80% 0.60% 2,477,314 2,477,314

   

Total funds allocated for the year 100% 100% 324,421,631 387,140,933

* Percentages shown are based on allocation totals and not revenue received. 
Statutory bodies received a set dollar amount (2022/23 statutory bodies received 42% 
of actual revenue received). 

**In 2022/23 an allocation of $5.3 million was approved by the Board towards the 
celebration of women’s achievement in recognition of the FIFA Women’s World Cup 
2023.

In 2022/23 the Board approved to allocate proceeds, being $11.770 million, from a 
special purpose lottery draw held on 18 March 2023, to support Cyclone Gabrielle 
relief.

***New Zealand Film Commission received an allocation to pass to Ngā Taonga Sound 
and Vision under the terms of a memorandum of understanding. 

Sport New Zealand received an allocation for use in funding the water safety sector 
under the terms of a memorandum of understanding.
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Note 5: Financial instrument categories
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in each of the financial 
categories are as follows:

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 85,792,797 120,886,764 

Debtors and other receivables	 92,296,937 9,854,272 

Short-term investments 90,677,881 50,538,053 

Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 268,767,615 181,279,089

 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Creditors and other payables 62,962 58,531 

Grants payable 45,713,477 61,060,287 

Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 45,776,439 61,118,818

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in transit, deposits held on call 
with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments, with original maturities of 
three months or less. The carrying value of these assets approximates their fair value. 

Debtors and receivables carried at amortised cost approximates their fair value. The 
recoverable amount is calculated at the face value of estimated future cash flows. 
Impairment, being the difference between carrying amount and recoverable amount, 
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. 

Creditors and other payables are measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Any 
profits or losses from these financial transactions are recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. 
 
Bank term deposits are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts of term 
deposits approximate their fair value.

In meeting its liquidity requirements, the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries maintains 
a target level of investments that must mature within specified timeframes to meet 
projected grants payments and other accounts payable (refer to Note 7 and Note 8).
Contractual cash flows for term deposits include the interest revenue on the 
investments at maturity date. The carrying amount of term deposits with maturity less 
than 12 months approximate their fair value.
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As grants payable recognises grants approved but unpaid as at reporting date, due to 
grants conditions not having been met, the timing of these payments is not certain. 
Payments are typically settled within a year of committee approval. Other accounts 
payable are typically settled within 30 days of receipt of an invoice.

Financial instrument risk
The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries is party to financial instrument arrangements 
as part of its daily operations. These include cash and cash equivalents, accounts 
receivable, short-term investments, accounts payable, and other financial liabilities.
The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries’ activities expose it to a variety of financial 
instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Profits of 
New Zealand Lotteries has policies to manage the risks associated with financial 
instruments and seeks to minimise exposure from financial instruments. These policies 
do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations, causing the Profits 
of New Zealand Lotteries to incur a loss. 

Credit risk is reduced by investing up to fixed limits, only in approved banking 
institutions carrying Standard and Poor’s short-term rating of not less than A-1’ from 
Standard and Poor’s, ‘F1’ from Fitch Ratings, or ‘P-1’ from Moody’s Investor Service. 
These limits reduce the credit risk exposure to any one financial institution.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is high, due to the 
reliance on Lotto NZ for 99% of revenue for Profits of New Zealand Lotteries. Reliance 
is placed on the fact that Lotto NZ is a going concern. In addition, the distribution 
of grants by the committees is closely monitored to ensure that commitments are 
matched by revenue.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates.

For bank term deposits with terms of greater than 90 days, the terms were 127 - 261 
days (2022/23: 124 – 252 days). The Interest rates ranged from 5.91% - 6.20% p.a. 
(2022/23 3.65% - 6.25% p.a.).

Profits of New Zealand Lotteries only invests in fixed interest rate money market 
investments.
Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries will encounter 
difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due.

Note 6: Receivables

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Accounts receivable, lottery profits 92,293,388 9,825,000 

Debtors and other receivables 3,549 29,272

Allowance for doubtful debts - -

Total receivables 92,296,937 9,854,272

Accounts receivable is the final profits payment due from Lotto NZ and is recorded at 
face value. The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries has applied the simplified expected 
credit loss model of recognising an allowance for doubtful debts on receivables.

Debtors and other receivables are non-interest bearing, non-exchange-revenue related, 
and receipts are within the normal terms. Therefore, the carrying value of debtors and 
other receivables approximates their fair value. The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries 
has applied the simplified expected credit loss model of recognising an allowance for 
doubtful debts on debtors and other receivables.
 
The ageing profile of receivables at year end is detailed below:

Gross 
carrying 
amount

$

Actual 2024
Allowance 

for doubtful 
debts

$

Net 
carrying 

amount at 
fair value

$

Gross 
carrying 
amount

$

Actual 2023
Allowance 

for doubtful 
debts

$

Net 
carrying 

amount at 
fair value

$

Not past due 92,293,388 - 92,293,388 9,825,000 - 9,825,000 

Past due 
1-30 days 3,549 - 3,549 29,272 - 29,272 

Past due 31-
60 days - - - - - -

Past due 61-
90 days - - - - - -

Past due 
over 90 days - - - - - -

Total 
receivables 92,296,937 - 92,296,937 9,854,272 - 9,854,272
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All receivables more than 30 days in age are past due. Due to the nature, debtors 
and other receivables have been assessed for impairment on a collective basis, 
after accounting for any specific doubtful debts, as they possess shared credit risk 
characteristics.

Note 7: Grants payable 

  

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Short-term (12 months or less) 45,713,477 61,060,287

Total grants payable 45,713,477 61,060,287

All grants payable that has due dates more than 12 months after the end of the 
financial year are classified as non-current, or long-term, grants payable. 

Note 8: Creditors and other payables

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Exchange transactions

Other suppliers 57,610 57,318 

Non-exchange transactions

PAYE 5,352 1,213 

Total creditors and other payables 62,962 58,531

Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and payments are within 
the normal terms. Therefore, the carrying value of creditors and other payables 
approximates their fair value.
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Note 9: Reconciliation of net cash flows from operating activities with total 
comprehensive revenue and expense

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Total comprehensive revenue and expense 103,039,854 (37,733,384)

   

Add/(deduct) movements in statement of financial 
position items    

(Increase)/ decrease in debtors and other receivables (82,442,665) (512,315) 

(Increase)/ decrease in accrued interest (134,545) (173,955)

(Increase)/ decrease in GST receivable (214,232) 825,533 

Increase/ (decrease) in grants payable (15,346,810) (1,717,214)

Increase/ (decrease) in creditors and other payables 4,431 (7,856)

Net movements in working capital items (98,133,821) (1,585,807)

Net cash flow from operating activities 4,906,033 (39,319,191)

Note 10: Related party transactions and key management personnel
The Secretary for Internal Affairs is Trustee of the profits received from the New 
Zealand Lottery Grants Board, which in turn receive their income from Lotto NZ under 
the Gambling Act 2003.

The Profits of New Zealand Lotteries enters transactions with other entities on an arm’s 
length basis. 

Transactions that occur are within supplier or client relationships on terms and 
conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect the 
Profits of New Zealand Lotteries would have adopted if dealing with unrelated parties 
at arm’s length. 

Transactions with other government agencies are not disclosed as related party 
transactions when they are consistent with the normal operating arrangements 
between government agencies and undertaken on the normal terms and conditions for 
such transactions.
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The Department of Internal Affairs (the Department) provides administration services 
to the Profits of New Zealand Lotteries, the distribution committees, and the Minister 
of Internal Affairs. 

The services provided by the Department in 2023/24 include personnel, 
accommodation, administration, and other services totalling $12,228,000 (2022/23: 
$11,367,000). An additional $3,009,827 was provided to support the Kia Tipu, He Tipua 
future funding model work programme (2022/23 $1,696,770). 

Note 11: Disclosure of Fees 
Fees are paid for attendance at committee meetings and for preparation and reading 
in relation to meetings. Distribution committee members’ fees for the year to 30 June 
2024 are shown below. These fees are based on actual paid fees in the year. Any fees 
processed after year end will appear in the 2024/25 annual report.

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Adlam, J. - 348 

Algar, H. 696 1,044 

Baker, P.V. 696 696 

Bannerman, Y. 696 696 

Bayfield, M.A. - 348 

Bigham, B. 391 1,565 

Burns, P. 812 -

Cairns, B. 818 348 

Candy, A. 928 928 

Clarke, J.V. - 116 

Clarricoats, G. 1,956 2,112 

Correa, R. 1,513 504 

Cotter Tait, S. 812 986 

Cotton, E. 1,102 348 

Crawford, E. 2,435 696 

Daw, J.M. 58 232 

Degia-Pala, A. - 812 

Dhiru, V. 696 696 

Dillon, T. 470 817 



127

Financial Statements

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

El-Shadan, T. 116 174 

Fannin, M. 232 696 

Firestone, R. 3,889 3,890 

Fletcher, E. 2,919 2,920 

Fox, N. 696 348 

Fyfe, D. 696 348 

Gemmell, S.E.B. 2,436 1,102 

Gestro-Best, C. 696 696 

Glenn, D. 2,436 2,030 

Gould-Lardelli, R. 783 792 

Gritt, J. 769 817 

Hebberd, C. 696 696 

Hewitt, R. 1,450 1,508 

Holmes,P. 1,334 812 

Horton, J. 2,919 2,920 

Houkamau, R. 939 670 

Howarth, J.R. 696 348 

Ivory, D. 812 580 

Jeffreys, M. 2,919 2,920 

Jenkins,L. - 348 

Jury, A. 157 -

Kapa, R. 928 696 

Kaye-Simmons, V.M. 939 -

Keefe, M.J.M. - 470 

Kumar, M. 470 939 

Lang, D.M. - 470 

Lanigan-Behrent, T. 986 928 

Latham, M. 939 939 

Lee, J. 2,577 1,740 

Lee, S. - 348 
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Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Leung, R. 754 696 

Lockwood, S.G. 939 939 

Lomas, T. 928 348 

Lovell, E. 812 1,330 

Lu, B. 2,919 2,920 

Maru, B. 696 696 

McCartney, N. - 348 

McKee, E.M. - 232 

Menzies-Culling, S. 696 696 

Morrison, G. 1,044 -

Mosely, I. - 348 

Mulcahy, S.J. - 468 

Nicholas, T. - 1,044 

Nuri, N. 1,409 1,044 

O'Connell, J. 939 938 

Paewai, S.D. 696 939 

Paitai, T. 696 696 

Pamatatau, R. 1,252 1,252 

Parks, T.V. - 469 

Patten-Matehaere, S. 696 696 

Pishief, E. 754 348 

Powley, Y.S. 116 232 

Quirk, C. 661 696 

Ridden, J. 464 522 

Robin, T. 986 -

Rossiter-Stead, C. 696 464 

Ryu, G. 928 928 

Sadlier, L. - 696 

Shaw, V.F. 1,096 469 

Stevens, K. 1,096 986 

Tait, H. 1,218 580 
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Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Tana, R. 855 928 

Taufale, T.T.S. 812 348 

Taylor, N. 116 273 

Tepania-Palmer, G. - 348 

Terewi, S. - 116 

Van Uden, V. 939 939 

von Dadelszen, E.H. 406 -

Wadia, F. 2,737 2,739 

Waghorn, C. - 986 

Wraight, B. 754 812 

Walford-Smith, L. 812 696 

Wilks, S. 464 696 

Wood, J. 232 464 

Worden, J. - 817 

Wright-Tawhā, T. 406 348 

Yates, M. - 986 

Xiao, S.X. 661 348 

Distribution committee members’ fees paid 80,193 78,301

Distribution meeting expenses 35,978 47,586

Total distribution committee members’ expenses 116,171 125,887 
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Note 12: Grants expenses 

 

Actual
2024

$

Actual
2023

$

Grant applications approved during the year 181,797,494 230,781,503 

Decrease/(increase) from the prior year of grants with 
substantive conditions disclosed in the statement of 
commitments 5,069,252 22,895,253

Allocations to the statutory bodies 137,000,000 153,006,000

Total grants expenses 323,866,746 406,682,756

Note 13: Explanation of significant variances against budget 
Explanations of significant variances between actual and budget for the year ending 30 
June 2024 are as follows:

Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
Distribution from Lottery Grants Board
Revenue budgets were based on Lotto NZ forecast profits at the start of 2023/24. Lotto 
NZ profits were $106.1 million higher than the budget due to a $30 million Powerball 
jackpot in April 2024 and followed by a $50 million must-be-won Powerball jackpot in 
June 2024. The increased profits have been distributed from the Board to the Profits of 
New Zealand Lotteries. 

Grants expenses
Funding allocated to the distribution committees is calculated on revenue from Lotto 
NZ forecast at the start of 2023/24. The increase is due to additional funding approved 
by the Board to support communities affected by natural disaster events including 
continued support for communities in three regions with the most significant damage 
in the wake of Cyclone Gabrielle. A decrease of $5.1 million from the prior year of 
grants with substantive conditions disclosed in the statement of commitments, 
contributed further to an increase in grants expenditure.

Operating surplus/(deficit)
This is the result of timing differences in revenue recognition and grant expenditure. 
Total profits equivalent to amounts both received and receivable from Lotto NZ are 
recognised as revenue in the current year whereas grants expenditure is recognised 
when grants are paid or when grant conditions have been met.
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Statement of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents
The final quarter payment from Lotto NZ, received on 27 June 2024, was on budget.

Debtors and other receivables
The 2023/24 final profits payment of $92.3 million from Lotto NZ was received 30 
August 2024. This payment was not budgeted.

Grants payable
As at 30 June 2024 there were $35.1 million of grants expenses with substantive 
conditions, which are disclosed in the statement of commitments according to 
accounting policy (2022/23 $40.1 million). 

Accumulated funds
The increased revenue from Lotto NZ less an increase in grant expenditure has led to 
a net increase in accumulated funds. The budget does not include the reduction in 
the recognition of grant expenses for grants with substantive conditions, which are 
disclosed in the statement of commitments.

Note 14: Events after reporting date
There were no significant events that have occurred between 30 June 2024 and signing 
these financial statements (2022/23: $nil).



Te Puna Tahua Lottery Grants Board
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